
 
 

1 
 

BOARD MEETING 

December 6, 2017; 2:00 p.m. 
Renaissance World Golf Village and Convention Center 

Caddy Shack Restaurant 

TENTATIVE AGENDA 
*Action Item 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call   
II. Public Comment 
III. Review of Delegation of Authority Items 
IV. Approval of September 20, 2017 Annual Board Meeting Minutes* 
   
V. Staff  and Committee Reports 

A. CEO Report-Verbal 
B. 1st Quarter Program Update  
C. 1st Quarter Early Literacy Report 
D. Executive Administrative Committee 

Draft minutes of November 1, 2017 Meeting – Informational  
Consent Agenda: 
1. Ratify Approval of August 9, 2017 Exec/Admin Committee Meeting Minutes* 
2. Ratify Approval of ECS 2017/18 Contract Amendment #0003-17* 
3. Ratify Approval of the 2017/18 OEL/ELC University of Florida/Lastinger Center 

Pay for Performance Contract effective 9/15/17 – 7/31/18 (#SR400)* 
4. Ratify Approval of the 2017/18 ELC/ECS University of Florida /Lastinger 

Center Pay for Performance Contract effective 9/15/17 – 7/31/18 (#SR400)* 
5. Ratify Approval of the ELC SR Plan 2017-19 Certification* 
6. Ratify Approval of District Superintendent of Schools or Designee, Kristi 

Simpkins, 2nd Term.* (Dec. 2017 Dec. 2021) 
7. Ratify Approval of Consulting Agreement with Kim Brumfield* 
8. Ratify Approval of Moultrie Place Lease Continuation (St. Aug Office)* 
9. Ratify Approval of Agreement with Contemporary Staffing Solutions* 

 
VI. New/Unfinished Business 

A. Approval of Management Decision Recommendation for ECS Audit 2016/2017* 
B. Approval of NEFEC Lease 2018-2019 Continuation* 
C. Approval of ECS 2017/2018 amendment #0004-17 and party signatures* 
D. Approval of Revisions to the Coalition’s Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual* 
E. Approval of the Member Appointed by Executive Director of NEFEC for the mandated 

position of Programs for Children with Disabilities under the Federal Individuals with 
Disabilities Act: Marsha Hill* 

F. Approval of the County Health Department Director or Designee, Mary Garcia* 
G. Review of Board Membership- Informational 

 
 



 
 

2 
 

VII. Board Absenteeism Log – INFORMATIONAL 
 
 

VIII. Board Comment 
 
 

IX. Next Meetings 
 Wednesday, February 7th, 2018 10:30 a.m. – Exec/Admin Committee Conference Call 

Meeting 
 Wednesday, March 21st, 10:30 a.m. – Board Meeting 

 
 
X. Adjournment* 
 
 
 

 

 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.  
Board Meeting  

December 6, 2017 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

         

 

II. Public Comment 

 

         

 

III. Review of Delegation of Authority Items 

 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting December 6, 2017 

 

 

 

 

IV.  Approval of September 20, 2017 Annual                  
Board Meeting Minutes* 

 

 

*ACTION ITEM 



 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Annual Board Meeting 
September 20, 2017 

World Golf Village Convention Center 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 

ANNUAL BOARD MEETING 
The Renaissance World Golf Village and Convention Center 

September 20, 2017 
10:30 a.m. 

 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Members Present: 
Adam Deputy 
Mala Ramoutar 
Myrna Allen 
Renee Williams, Treasuerer  
Vina Delcomyn 
Brian Graham, Vice Chair 
Teresa Matheny, ECS 
Brian McElhone 
Theresa Little 
Joy Stanton  
 

Members Absent: 
Kristi Simpkins; excused 
Nancy Pearson, Board Chair; excused 
Amy Lane; excused 
Commissioner Jeb Smith; excused 
Cynthia Kent; excused 
Ron Coleman, excused 
Angelia Hough, excused 
 
 
 
 

 
Staff Present: 
Dawn Bell, Chief Executive Officer 
Kim Brumfield, Office Manager 
Tajaro Dixon, Grants and Operations Manager 
Joan Whitson, Early Literacy Coordinator 
Patty Larkin, Finance Manager 

Others Present: 
 

 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
R. Williams called the meeting to order at 10:40 a.m.  Roll was taken; quorum was met, with 10 
of the 17 board members in attendance.   
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No comments. 
 
 
REVIEW OF DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY ITEMS 
The Board designates authority to the Coalition’s Office Manager to review and approve the Chief 
Executive Officer’s timesheets, leave requests, work related travel expenses, and other routine 
operational requests.  These documents are made available at each regular board meeting for board 
review.  Delegation items were passed around with no discussion or questions on the items reviewed. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Board Meeting 
September 21, 2016 

 

2

 
APPROVAL OF JUNE 21, 2017 BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 
 

1. T. Little motioned to approve the June 21, 2017 Board Meeting Minutes, as 
presented.  A. Deputy seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. No 
discussion 

 
 
STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
CEO REPORT- REVIEW OF THE 2017 BOARD SELF EVAULATION REULTS  
D. Bell used this time to review the board self-evaluation.  This evaluation allows both board and 
staff members to assess how we are all doing and identifies any gaps that we can provide support 
through materials or training.  Staff really looks for those 1 or 2 ratings to see if there may be a 
gap, whether it is individually or more globally as a board.   
 
4TH QUARTER PROGRAM UPDATE 
T. Dixon reported on the following: 

Coalition Activities:   

 The ELC recently created its own Vendor Contracts Checklists (and other 
reference documents) while cross training on contract compliance May 19, 2017. 
 Kim Brumfield and I created Travel Regulations training documents and held staff 
training June 20 for the new regulations taking effect July 1, 2017.  
 With the ELC migrating to a cloud-based MIP program for OEL invoicing, cross-
training will have to take place again (for monthly invoicing) once this software is fully in 
place.  We will update you once that has been scheduled. 
 As the ELC will be ‘skipped’ this year for the OEL fiscal monitoring (due to being 
designated a ‘low risk auditee from prior year reviews), ELC staff have requested 
‘voluntary’ desk reviews of the two newest procedures to ensure compliance.  Those two 
areas are the travel regulations and MIP (fiscal) transactions.  

Programmatic: 

ECS (Episcopal Children’s Services) On-Site Monitoring:  
 
o The 2016/2017 Third Quarter Monitoring was performed April 24 – May 5, 2017.  
This monitoring included all OEL required “eligibility” criteria, SR Plan Compliance: Unified 
Waiting List, Child Care Provider Monitoring (and SR Provider Contract Requirements), 
and the Fiscal Non-Direct Costs review.  From this monitoring there were eight compliance 
issues and one observation.  Four of the issues were programmatic and routine in nature.  
Three of the issues related to the provider reimbursements.  The last issue and the one 
observation were fiscally related.  All corrective action items were completed and received 
by the final report. 
 
o The 2016/2017 Fourth Quarter Monitoring was performed on-site July 24 – August 
4, 2017.  This monitoring will include all OEL required “eligibility” criteria, SR Plan 
Compliance: Quality Performance Report, the Fiscal Non-Direct Costs review, and the 



 

Board Meeting 
September 21, 2016 

 

3

Year-end Fiscal Overview.  The next round of on-site monitoring dates will be September 
18 – 22 and will include the review of the 13th invoice (last fiscal year invoice).  The final 
report is scheduled to be completed by September 28, 2017.  A summary of the final report 
will be included in (this) next quarterly program board report.   

 
ALL full reports are available upon request. 
 
4TH QUARTER EARLY LITERACY REPORT 
J. Whitson reported on the following:  
 
Highlights: 
 
Toddler Sensory Day: May 8th - The ELC participated in a Toddler Sensory program sponsored 
by the Kiwanis Club of St. Augustine at the Hastings Branch Library.   The kids were given free 
books and even experienced a visit from Dora the Explorer.   
 
Early Literacy Outreach Programs:   
 
Mother Goose Program:  Outreach assistant Sandi Dunnavant AKA “Mother Goose” put on 9 
rhyming themed story time programs in Clay and Baker County pre-school classrooms.  This 
program highlights the importance of teaching nursery rhymes and models to teacher’s easy and 
unique ways to teach them in their classrooms.  Each teacher is given a resource kit that can 
implement this program into their everyday curriculum.  850 children received a FREE Nursery 
Rhyme book.  Sandi is forming a Mother Goose society where she is training volunteers who 
also want to be Mother Goose with the purpose of increasing the number of these programs in 
the coming years.   
 
New Outreach Programs: STEAM Focus      (Now being offered to providers) these 
programs are being taught by ELC outreach staff and volunteers.   

1. Meet the Masters Arts Program:  This program introduces children to the great 
Masters of the Arts such as musicians Beethoven and Mozart and artists like Van Gough, 
Rodin, Seurat, Matisse and Monet.  The children get to wave scarves to the music of 
Beethoven and play rhythm sticks to the “March of the Toys” by Victor Hubert.  One of 
the presenters dresses up as the artist George Seurat wearing a beard and hat and with a 
French accent gives facts about themselves then reads a book to the children.  The 
children rotate to different activities all centered on a different artist and our able to 
participate in an art project like painting or sculpting that relates to that artist.  Each child 
receives a FREE copy of the book “The Dot” and the teacher receives a large resource 
packet with art and music supplies and teachers manual to duplicate the program 
themselves.     

2. Science/Space Program:  This program introduces the children to the world of space.  
The children are shown a model of the planets and get to see pictures of earth from space 
as well as look through a telescope.  A space themed story time is presented then the kids 
experience at least three different activities such as making their own telescope, playing 
with galactic dough and painting a planets picture.  The children will all receive a 
national geographic beginner’s book about space and the teacher will receive a kit that 
includes a globe, space model, telescope and lesson plans to duplicate this program.   
 



 

Board Meeting 
September 21, 2016 

 

4

Three and Four Year Old Book Bag Program:  This quarter six centers in Putnam, Clay and 
St. Johns county were visited with a book bag distribution program featuring special guest Pete 
the Cat or Clifford.  245 book bags filled with 8-10 books were distributed. 
 
Baby Bags:  100 bag bags filled with 5 board books were distributed by Episcopal Children’s 
services at their client services locations in Putnam, St. Johns and Clay County to children ages 
0-2.  Nassau, Bradford and Baker office locations participate in the Ferst Foundation book 
program instead.  
  
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
Draft minutes of the August 9, 2017 Exec Admin Committee Meeting were provided as an 
informational item.  The following are the items that were up for ratification on the Exec Admin 
Committee  
 Consent Agenda 

1. Ratify Approval of financials as of June 30, 2017* 
2. Ratify Approval of  ELC North Florida Budget Revision #5* 
3. Ratify Approval of  ECS 2017/2018 Contract Amendment #0001-17* 
4. Ratify Approval of North Florida 2017/2018 OAMI Grant Agreement* 
5. Ratify Approval of 2017-2018 COOP* 

 
 

2. A. Deputy motioned for ratification of items 1-5 on the Exec Admin 
Committee Consent agenda, as presented.  R. Williams seconded the motion.  
No Discussion, motion passed unanimously. 

T. Matheny abstained from voting on item # 3 
 
NEW/UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
SUMMARY OF D. BELL ANNUAL EVALUATION (HANDOUT) 
A handout of the summary was provided and is as follows 

 The evaluation was conducted on September 1, 2017 with Nancy Pearson, Ron Coleman, 
Brian Graham, Adam Deputy and Joy Stanton serving as evaluators.  
 

 Of the total 17 evaluations mailed/handed to the board members, 12 members completed 
the evaluation, 3 member chose not to complete the evaluation due to not being on the 
board for any length of time.  2 board members did not return the eval.  
 

 Out of a 1 to 5 rating scale, 1 = Unsatisfactory and 5 = Outstanding; Dawn’s Overall 
Rating Score was a 4.31 = Very Good. 

 
 Dawn’s next evaluation period ends September 1, 2018 

 

 If any Board Member would like to see a copy of the final compiled evaluation results, 
please contact Kim Brumfield. 

 



 

Board Meeting 
September 21, 2016 

 

5

 
 
APPROVAL OF REVISIONS TO THE COALITIONS PERSONNEL POLICIES AND 
PROCEDURES MANUAL* 
HR404 – Business Travel Expenses,  

 added new state regulation references (FAC 69I-42 and FDOE Travel Policy DOE-
IOP-500, effective 12/01/16)  

 added criteria for car rental sizes 
changed report submittal due dates per FDOE Travel policy, page 8, IV. Travel Reimbursement, B. 1. and 
2. 

 
3. V. Delcomyn motioned the Approval of the revisions to the coalitions 

personnel policies and procedures manual.  B. McElhone seconded the 
motion.  No Discussion. Motion passed unanimously .  

 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE REVISIONS TO THE COALITIONS ACCOUNTING AND 
FINANCIAL PROCEDURES MANUAL* 

Revisions: 
 

F301 – Purchasing Policies and Procedures, deleted “Purchase or Lease Decision” section, to 
move to the procurement policy PR401, after #5 which contains other cost and price analysis 
information/requirements. 

F305 – Accounts Payable Management,  
 Deleted statement regarding effective dates and phase-in dates of purchase order system 

(as the Coalition is in compliance of these dates, and no longer apply). 
 Added statement that it is the Coalition’s policy to issue a purchase order (or use of a 

credit card with proper authorization) PRIOR to procurement of good and services.  
(Post 17/18 Internal Controls Questionnaire review.) 

F306 – Travel and Business Expenses,  
 added FAC and FDOE regulations to top of policy 
 changed travel advancement expense reports must be submitted (from 7 days) to within 

five (5) business of return from travel. 
Changes to “Employee and Director Business Travel” section: 
o #5 - changed mileage rate from IRS rates to OEL rates. 
o #9 - added board member 
o Added #12 regarding Coalition Travel Mileage Log for frequented trips. 
 Changed #3 of “Reasonableness of Travel Costs” section to read compact cars are 

required for single travelers, and when larger cars are appropriate. 
F307 – Cash Disbursements (Check-Writing) Policies, added to “Check Preparation” section 

that checks are pre-numbered and are imprinted with “Void after 90 days” statement. 
(Post 17/18 Internal Controls Questionnaire review.) 

F309 – Payroll and Related Policies, added “Leave Audits” section stating periodically (and 
prior to fiscal year-end) the Office Manager will send e-mails notices to all staff to verify 
leave balances and identify how many annual leave hours the employee may have in 
jeopardy of losing, if not used  by fiscal year-end.  (Post 17/18 Internal Controls 
Questionnaire review.) 

 



 

Board Meeting 
September 21, 2016 

 

6

4.  J. Stanton motioned Approval of Coalitions Accounting and financial 
procedures manual. V. Delcomyn seconded the motion.  No Discussion.  
Motion Passed unanimously.   

 
 

APPROVAL OF THE COALITIONS PROCUREMET OF COMMODITIES AND /OR/ 
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL* 

Revisions: 
 

PR401 - What to Consider When Procuring Any Item with Grant Funding,  
 added a reference to the Coalition’s Procurement Form, to the top of the policy. 
 Added #6, “Cost and Price Analysis - Purchase or Lease Decision” to section, “What to 

Consider when procuring any Item with Grant Funding”. This item was deleted from policy 
F301, to move to the procurement policy, after #5 which contains other cost and price 
analysis information/requirements. 

 added #9, “Membership dues, subscriptions and licensing fees” requirements to section, “For 
All Grant Funded Procurements” (post 17/18 Internal Controls Questionnaire and 17/18 
OEL Grant Agreement – page 17, Exhibit I, S.) 

 added “SAM” website link to #2 in section, “For All Grant Funded Procurements” following 
research with OEL on how to check for a banned company that is located outside of Florida. 

PR402 - Types of Procurement, added a definition for “informal bids” to “Small Purchases” section. 
(Post 17/18 Internal Controls Questionnaire review.) 

 
5. A. Deputy motioned the Approval of the coalitions procuremet of 

commodities and /or/ contractual services policies and procedures manual.  R. 
Williams seconded the motion.    No discussion – motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

 

 
APPROVAL OF B. GRAHAM, R. WILLIAMS, T. LITTLE AND J. STANTON TO 
ATTEND THE 2017 NATIONAL SUMMIT ON EDUCATION REFORM, NOV. 29- DEC. 
1, 2017 IN NASHVILLE, TN.*  
ExcelinEd’s 10th Annual National Summit on Education Reform, happening November 29 – 
December 1, 2017 in Nashville, TN.  

Celebrating 10 years as ExcelinEd’s flagship initiative, the National Summit on Education 
Reform convenes the nation’s leaders in education policy to share what works, what doesn’t and 
what’s next in education. 

Governor Jeb Bush, hosts 1,000 state and national policymakers, education leaders and 
advocates for two comprehensive days on new trends, successful policies, evolving laws and the 
latest innovations that are transforming education for the 21st century. 

Travel Dates will be Nov. 29- Dec. 3, 2017 
 
 



 

Board Meeting 
September 21, 2016 

 

7

6.   V. Delcomyn motioned to approve B. Graham, R. Williams, T. Little and J. 
Stanton to attend the 2017 National Summit on Education Reform, Nov. 29 -
Dec 1, 2017 in Nashville, TN.  A. Deputy seconded the motion.  No 
discussion – motion passed unanimously. 

 
B. Graham, R. Williams, T. Little and J. Stanton recused themselves from voting.   
 
  
APPROVAL OF IT/CLOUD SERVICES WITH WWIT/COMPASS MSP* 
To approve the contract being presented for services with our current IT services company 
Compass MSP, formerly Worldwide IT.  The new contact has: 
 

 Monthly fee schedule of $941.00 (6 hours of support included in this cost) 
 Once 6 hours of monthly support has been exhausted, an hourly rate of 125.00/hr for M-

F, 8am – 5pm starts. 
 If after hours support is needed the hourly rate goes to 187.50/hr 
 This contract is not to exceed $25,000 annually without written permission. 

 
 
 

7.   A. Deputy motioned to approve the IT/Cloud services with Compass MSP  
T. Little seconded the motion.  No discussion – motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF DISPOSAL OF INVENTORY* 
Any disposal of property listed on Coalition inventory, must be board approved in order to proceed with 
the removal of any item on the inventory. 
 
Staff is asking permission to use this item for scrap parts after it has been wiped clean.  The computer is 
no longer in working condition, but can be used for parts. 
 

 CNBB 305 / ECS1809 – Computer- Latitude E6520 
Serial # 23CB5Q1 

 CNBB 306 / ECS 1810- Computer- Latitude E6520 
Serial #JX6B5Q1 

 CNBB 69 / ECS 1345  FLEFS113/127/139 Server 
 CNBB 25 / ECS 1336  Oracle Database Std. Edition software Installed on CNBB 69 / ECS 1345 

 
 
 

8. B. McElhone motioned to approve the disposal of inventory items.  J. Stanton 
seconded the motion.  No discussion – motion passed unanimously. 

 
T. Matheny recused herself from voting. See attached paperwok 
 
 
 
 



 

Board Meeting 
September 21, 2016 

 

8

 
BOARD MEMBERSHIP REVIEW 
K. Brumfield reviewed upcoming board term dates and overall membership stats 
 
 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS* 
By unanimous vote via emailed ballots, the following board members were nominated and 
elected to serve as the Coalition Officers for the 2017-18 fiscal year. 
 

 Chair: Nancy Pearson 
 Vice Chair: Renee Williams 
 Treasurer: Theresa Little 
 Secretary:  Joy Stanton 

 
 
  9. A. Deputy motioned to approve Election of Officers.  V. Delcomyn seconded  
  the motion. No Discussion.  Motion passed unanimously.  
 
 
 
 
STANDING COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND SIGN-UP. 
Emailed to all board members asking for volunteers on this committee.  Besides our elected 
officers we would like 4 additional members.   
 
The committee is as follows: N. Pearson, J. Stanton, R. Williams, T. Little, M. Allen,                 
V. Delcomyn, T. Matheny, B. McElhone,  
 
K. Brumfield will email the board with final results on both election of officers and standing 
committee . 
 
 
 
 
 
CODE OF ETHICS (HANDOUT) 
The Coalition policy OP202 Code of Ethics was provided in the Board Packet. Board Members 
and staff did not have any questions regarding the policy. All board members and staff in 
attendance signed the acknowledgement of compliance and turned them in.  Any board member 
and/or staff not in attendance of today’s meeting will have their Code of Ethics policy sent to 
them for review and signature. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Board Meeting 
September 21, 2016 

 

9

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE (HANDOUT) 
The Coalition policy OP203 Conflict of Interest was provided in the Board Packet. Board 
Members and staff did not have any questions regarding the policy. All board and staff in 
attendance completed and signed the questionnaire portion of the policy and turned them in. Any 
board member and/or staff not in attendance of today’s meeting will have their Conflict of 
Interest policy sent to them for review and signature. 
 
 
 
APPROVAL ELCNF 2016-17 ANNUAL REPORT* (HANDOUT) 

D. Bell explained this Annual Report format came from the state and this is the required 
format for the state’s Annual Report with submission required on October 1.  

 
 

10.  V. Delcomyn motioned the Approval of the 2016-17 Annual Report, as 
presented.  A. Dreputy seconded the motion.  No Discussion – motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
 
 
 
BOARD ABSENTEEISM LOG- Informational 
No Comments.   
 
BOARD COMMENTS 
T. Little was appointed to the Committee on Early Grade Success.  Letter Attached.  
 
 
NEXT MEETINGS 
The next scheduled meetings are as follows: 
 

 Wednesday, November 1, 2017 , 10:30 a.m. – Exec/Admin Committee Conference Call 
Meeting 

 Wednesday, December 6, 2017 2 p.m. –Board Meeting World Golf Village Caddy Shack 
Restaurant. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT* 
 

11. M. Miner motioned for adjournment at 11:07a.m.  A. Deputy: 
                seconded the motion.  No discussion – motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
HANDOUTS:  1. Election of Officers, 2. Standing Committee Sign up, 3. Code of Ehics, 4. 
Conflict of Interest, 5. ELCNF Annual Report,  6. ECS17/18 Contract Amendment#0002-17 
 
 
 
Minutes Submitted By:  Kim Brumfield, Office Manager 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Board Meeting 

 December 6, 2017 
 

 

 

 

V. Staff and Committee Reports 

 

B. 1st Quarter Program Update 



   
 

 

 

                                  A United Way Agency Funded by the State of Florida                       

2450 Old Moultrie Road, Suite 103 
St. Augustine, FL  32086 

904‐342‐2267 
www.elcnorthflorida.org 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  All Board Members 
From:  Tajaro Dixon, Grants and Operations Manager 
Date:  November 21, 2017 
Subject: 2017/2018 First Quarter Program Update and Quality Assurance Activities 

Coalition Activities:   

 From the ELC’s voluntary desk review of the new travel regulations effective July 1, 2017, we have 
received preliminary (but conflicting) results from OEL.  The ELC is working with OEL and the Association 
of ELC’s to seek clarity and processing efficiency improvements.    
 ELC (and ECS) staff attended the One Goal Summer Conference July 19 – 21, 2017.   
 ELC staff completed the 17/18 Internal Controls Questionnaire, and had several policy revisions for 
the 09/20/17 board meeting.  We have also begun a deeper review of ECS’s responses to any NEW 
questions added to this questionnaire each year. 
 All staff have begun annual archiving. 
 In July, all staff completed annual review of Anti-Fraud plan, policies and practices. 
 Coalition staff joined the OEL Equity and Inclusion Task Force August 1. 

Programmatic: 

ECS (Episcopal Children’s Services) On-Site Monitoring:  
 
o The 2016/2017 Fourth Quarter Monitoring was performed July 24 – August 4, 2017.  This monitoring 
included all OEL required “eligibility” criteria, SR Plan Compliance: Quality Performance Report, the Fiscal Non-Direct 
Costs review, and the Year-end Fiscal Overview.  The final report was completed October 23, 2017.   From this 
monitoring there were six compliance issues.  Four of the issues were programmatic and routine in nature.  The other 
two were related to the provider reimbursements.  Both of these issues were rare; (1) due to type of eligibility, and (2) 
tight timing of a (holiday) contract change.  All corrective action items were completed and received by the final 
report. 
 
o The 2017/2018 First Quarter Monitoring was performed October 30 – November 13, 2017.  This 
monitoring included all OEL required “eligibility” criteria, the Annual Data and Data Security Systems review, and the 
Fiscal Non-Direct Costs review.  The final report is scheduled to be completed by December 6, 2017.  A summary of 
the final report will be included in the next quarterly program board report.   
 
ALL full reports are available upon request. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Board Meeting 

 December 6, 2017 
 

 

 

 

V. Staff and Committee Reports 

 

C. 1st Quarter Early Literacy Report 



Early Literacy Outreach Report 
First Quarter 2017‐2018 

Completed By Joan Whitson 
 
Highlights: 
 
Summer Reading Conference, August 1:  Represented the ELC as a guest speaker at the Retired 
Senior Volunteer Program of St. Johns County’s annual summer volunteer conference.  This 
program is a great resource for volunteers and is a close community partner with the ELC.  
 
Early Literacy Outreach Programs: 
 
Book of the Month Program:  This is a program that the Episcopal Children’s Services Education 
Specialists use in targeted centers.  Each month, the Specialists focus their instruction with the 
provider using two books; one focused on early learning for infants and toddlers and the other 
for the 4‐year‐old child.  The Specialists provide these two books each month to the provider to 
help build up their libraries.  The ELC purchases the books for this program, assists the ECS’s 
targeted centers by providing them with special story time events, presents the children with 
free books, and provides the center’s teacher books and materials to duplicate the program.    
 
ELC Volunteer Reading Conference, September 27:  This is an annual event held at the 
Marywood Retreat Center in St. Johns County, where our reading volunteers are exposed to a 
plethora of ideas, interactive classes, professional and motivational speakers all with the goal of 
improving their reading and presentations skills at reading/story time events.  The topics and 
themes presented at this conference included incorporating dramatic play, adding music and 
movement, rhymers are readers, using themes and picking the best books.  We had 40 of our 
wonderful volunteers in attendance at this conference.   
 
Volunteer Reading Pals:  Three new volunteer trainings were facilitated in Clay, St. Johns and 
Putnam County where 12 new volunteer readers were added to the program.  Currently, there 
are 70 reading pals in 44 different schools throughout these counties.  This summer, the ELC 
added inventory and improved the three lending libraries we have in each county that 
volunteers use.  In addition, the ELC has added a host of materials such as puppets, costumes 
and activity packets for our volunteers to select from which truly enhances the reading and 
interactive experience for the children.  
 
Themed Literacy Programs:  The ELC developed two new literacy programs that launched this 
fall:  the Eric Carle themed program whose focus is on “Colors”, using Eric Carle’s books, “The 
Very Hungry Caterpillar” and “Brown Bear” and the second, a Space themed program that 
introduces preschoolers to the concept of space and the solar system we live in.  Each child will 
receive a free book relating to the theme of each program and the teachers will receive a large 
resource bag filled with materials to duplicate the programs on their own.  This year, Sandi 
Dunnavant will focus on presenting the Eric Carle and Mother Goose programs (her creation!) 
and I will focus on presenting the Space and Meet the Masters Arts program.   



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Board Meeting  

December 6, 2017 
 

V. Staff and Committee Reports 

 

D. Executive Administrative Committee 

Draft of November 1, 2017 Exec/Admin Meeting 
Minutes- INFORMATIONAL 

 



 

 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 

EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

Conference Call Meeting 
November 1, 2017 

10:30a.m. 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 

Committee Members Present: 
Renee Williams, Vice Chair 
Theresa Little, Treasurer 
Joy Stanton, Secretary 
Myrna Allen 
Teresa Matheny, ECS 
Brian McElhone 
 
 

Coalition Staff Present: 
Dawn Bell, Chief Executive Officer 
Kim Brumfield, Office Manager 
Tajaro Dixon, Grants and Operations Manager 
Rhonda Cody, Office Manager 
 

Committee Members Absent: 
Nancy Pearson, Board Chair- EXCUSED 
Vina Delcomyn- EXCUSED 
 

Others Present: 
 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL  
The meeting was called to order at 10:33 a.m. by K. Brumfield and roll was called; quorum was 
present with 6 of 8 committee members in attendance. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No Comments. 
 
 
REVIEW OF CREDIT CARD STATEMENTS 
Employee Credit card statements were presented to the committee for the review of the months 
of July, August and September 2017. (Amex and Visa cards issued to D. Bell, K. Brumfield)     
There were no comments or questions. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AUGUST 9, 2017 EXEC ADMIN MEETING MINUTES * 
 
 

1. J. Stanton motioned to approve the August 9, 2017 Exec Admin Meeting 
Minutes.  T. Matheny seconded the motion.  No discussion – motion passed 
unanimously. 
 



 

Executive/Admin Committee 
November 1, 2017 

 
 

2 

 
APPROVAL OF THE EPISCOPAL CHILDREN’S SERVICES 2017/2018 CONTRACT 
AMENDENT #0003-17* 
Revisions: 
 

A. Items #1 and #2 were to add (back) language regarding the University of 
Florida/Lastinger Center for Learning (Early Learning Florida) contract, as this is now 
funded for 2017/2018. 

B. Items #2 and #3 were to add the dollar amount of the University of Florida/Lastinger 
Center for Learning (Early Learning Florida) contract, as this is now funded for 
2017/2018. 
 

 
2. T. Little motioned to approve the ECS 2017/2018 Contract Amendment #0003-

17.  J. Stanton seconded the motion.  No discussion- motion passed 
unanimously. T. Matheny recused herself from voting, documentation attached.  

 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE 2017/2018 OEL/ELC UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA/LASTINGER 
CENTER PAY FOR PERFORMANCE CONTRACT EFFECTIVE 09/15/17 – 07/31/18 
(#SR400) 
 RETRO ACTIVE Approval (effective 09/26/17) 
 
This Contract for Services is made and entered into by and between The University of Florida 
Board of Trustees (a public body corporate of the State of Florida for the benefit of its Lastinger 
Center for Learning) and the ELC of North Florida.  
 
This is a quality initiative in its third year and is being OEL mandated. (It is also known as the 
“Early Learning Florida” initiative.) 
 
THIS CONTRACT is for Early Learning Florida courses that support local quality 
improvement/provider professional development goals.   
 
The Scope of Services for this contract is to:  

A. Conduct pre-Classroom Assessment Scoring System (CLASS) observations. 
B. Conduct post-CLASS observations. 
C. Compose and enter observation notes as well as CLASS numerical scores into the Web-

based Early Learning System (WELS). 
 
 

3. T. Little motioned to approve the 2017/18 OEL/ELC University of 
Florida/Lastinger Center Pay for Performance contract effective 09/15/17-



 

Executive/Admin Committee 
November 1, 2017 

 
 

3 

07/31/18 (#SR400).  M. Allen seconded the motion.  No discussion, motion 
passed unanimously.  

 
 

APPROVAL OF THE 2017/2018 ELC/ECS  UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA/LASTINGER 
CENTER PAY FOR PERFORMANCE CONTRACT EFFECTIVE 09/15/17-07/31/18 
(SR400)* 
 
This contract is between the ELC and ECS to carry out the University of Florida/Lastinger 
Center Pay for Performance Contract.  This was also added to ECS’s primary contract 
with amendment #3.   
 
This contract is basically the ‘back-up’ to the Primary ECS Contract Amendment #3. 
 
 
This Contract for Services is made and entered into by and between Early Learning Coalition of 
North Florida (“ELC”), and Episcopal Children’s Services (“Contractor”) in cooperation with 
The University of Florida Board of Trustees, a public body corporate of the State of Florida for 
the benefit of its Lastinger Center for Learning (“University”).  
 
THIS CONTRACT is for Early Learning Florida courses that support local quality 
improvement/provider professional development goals.   
 
The Scope of Services for this contract is to:  

A. Conduct pre-Classroom Assessment Scoring System (CLASS) observations. 
B. Conduct post-CLASS observations. 
C. Compose and enter observation notes as well as CLASS numerical scores into the Web-

based Early Learning System (WELS). 
 

4. T. Little motioned to approve the 2017/2018 ELC/ECS University of 
Florida/Lastinger Center Pay for Performance Contract effective 09/15/17-
07/31/18.  J. Stanton seconded the motion. No discussion- motion passed 
unanimously. T. Matheny recused herself from voting, documentation attached. 

 
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF NORTH FLORIDA 
SCHOOL READINESS PLAN 2017-19 CERTIFICATION* 

 

Section 1002.85, Florida Statutes (F.S.) gives authority to the Office of Early Learning (OEL) to 
adopt rules setting School Readiness (SR) Program plan standardized format and required 
content as necessary for a coalition or other qualified entity to administer the SR Program.  This 
statute also requires that each early learning coalition biennially submit a (new/updated) School 
Readiness (SR) Program Plan to OEL. 



 

Executive/Admin Committee 
November 1, 2017 

 
 

4 

OEL released guidance and a “certification form” September 27, 2017.  OEL has also assisted 
our ELC by ‘previewing’ our completed certification form and accompanying documents before 
submitting to our board.  Our completed SR Plan (“pending Board approval”) is due to OEL no 
later than October 30, 2017. 

For Board Approval - The 2017-19 SR Plan Certification includes: 

 The certification form 
 Two element attachments that required updates: 

* Attach II C ECS Combined Eligibility Polices Revised 100417 – showing edits  
* Attach VI A Public Input - ELCNF website screenshot 100317 
* Attach VI A Public Input - List of Board Approved minutes (“List” instead of ALL 
ACTUAL BOARD MINUTES that board members have already reviewed and approved, 
and can access on-line.  ALL ACTUAL board minutes were, however, submitted to 
OEL.) 

 
Other Information: 

 Provided in the packet is also the CORE SR Plan document (all previously approved, but 
moved to new form) for informational/reference purposes only. 

 Section III D “Quality Performance Report” is not due yet to OEL (awaiting guidance). 
 Section IV A and B “Financial Management” does not require board approval, only OEL 

approval.  (Separately - budgets and end-of-year audits are, however, board approved.) 
 
 

5. T. Matheny motioned to approve the Early Learning Coalition of North 
Florida School Readiness Plan 2017-19 Certification.  M. Allen seconded 
the motion.  Motion passed unanimously, no discussion. 

 

 

 

APPROVAL OF DISTRICT SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS OR DESIGNEE, KRISTI 
SIMPKINS, 2ND TERM* 

(DECEMBER 2017-DECEMBER 2021) 

 
Kristi has served one complete four-year term on the Coalition Board and has agreed to serve a 
seconded term at this time. 
 
Kristi’s second term would extend from Dec. 2017- Dec. 2021. 

 

6. T. Little motioned to approve District Superintendent of Schools or 
Designee, Kristi Simpkins, 2nd term (December 2017-December 2021). J. 
Stanton seconded the motion.  No discussion- motion passed unanimously.  



 

Executive/Admin Committee 
November 1, 2017 

 
 

5 

 

 

APPROVAL OF CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH KIM BRUMFIELD* 

 
ELC Office Manager, Kim Brumfield has tendered her resignation.  As with all pivotal positions 
with the coalition, we ask that these employees provide some continuing consulting in order to 
provide a smooth transition between outgoing and incoming employees.   
 
This contract shall be for the period of Dec. 6, 2017 to Dec. 5, 2018; at a rate of $23.00 per hour 
and the contract value is not to exceed $12,000.00 

 

7. T. Matheny motioned to approve the Consulting Agreement with Kim 
Brumfield for the period of December 6, 2017 to December 5, 2018.  J. 
Stanton seconded the motion.  No discussion-motion passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF MOULTRIE PLACE LEASE CONTINUATION (ST AUGUSTINE 
OFFICE)* 

 
Staff requests approval to continue the Moultrie lease agreement of rental of office space in St. 
Augustine, FL.  The current lease ends February 28, 2018.  
 
The space currently houses our CEO, Finance Manager, Office Manager and Early Literacy 
Outreach manager.  The total is $1858.67 per month with a 3% increase each year.  
 
 

8. T. Little motioned to approve the Moultrie Place lease continuation (St. 
Augustine office).  T. Matheny seconded the motion.  No discussion-
motion passed unanimously. 

 
APPROVAL OF THE AGREEMENT WITH CONTEMPORARY STAFFING 
SOLUTIONS*- HANDOUT 
 
Contemporary Staffing Solutions sources, screens and refers executive, professional and office 
candidates for placement as a temp or direct hire.   
 
This contract shall be a direct hire candidate placed by CSS at 20% of the candidates first year 
compensation.   
 
 



 

Executive/Admin Committee 
November 1, 2017 

 
 

6 

9. T. Little motioned to approve the Contemporary Staffing Solutions 
Agreement.  T. Matheny seconded the motion.  No discussion-motion 
passed unanimously. 

 
REVIEW OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP- Informational 
Informational; no comments. 

 
COMMITTEE ABSENTEEISM LOG- Informational 
Informational; no comments.  
 
 
COMMITTEE COMMENT 
No comment 
 
 
NEXT MEETING 
December 6, 2017 2:00 p.m. –Board Meeting/Volunteer Appreciation event at World Golf        
Village Caddy Shack Restaurant  
February 2, 2018 10:30 a.m. – Executive Administrative Committee Meeting- Conference Call  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT* 

 

10. M. Allen motioned to approve adjournment. T. Little seconded the motion.  
10:55 am No discussion- motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
Minutes submitted by, Rhonda Cody, Office Manager November 2, 2017 
 
Handout: 1Tentative Edited Agenda  2. Approval of Agreement with Contemporary Staffing 
Solutions.   



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Board Meeting 

December 6, 2017 
 

V. Staff and Committee Reports 

D.  Executive Administrative Committee 

Consent Agenda: 

1. Ratify Approval of August 9, 2017 Exec/Admin Committee 
Meeting Minutes* 

2. Ratify Approval of ECS 2017/18 Contract Amendment 
#0003-17* 

3. Ratify Approval of the 2017/18 OEL/ELC University of 
Florida/ Lastinger Center Pay for Performance Contract 
effective 9/15/17-7/31/18 (#SR400)* 

4. Ratify Approval of the 2017/18 ELC/ECS University of 
Florida/Lastinger Center Pay for Performance Contract 
effective 9/15/17-7/31/18 (#SR400)* 

5. Ratify Approval of the ELC SR Plan 2017-19 Certification* 
6. Ratify Approval of District Superintendent of Schools or 

Designee, Kristi Simpkins, 2nd Term.* (Dec. 2017-2021) 
7. Ratify Approval of Consulting Agreement with Kim 

Brumfield* 
8. Ratify Approval of Moultrie Place Lease Continuation (St. 

Aug Office)* 
9. Ratify Approval of Agreement with Contemporary Staffing 

Solutions* 
 
*ACTION ITEM 



 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 

EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

Conference Call Meeting 
August 9, 2017 

10:30a.m. 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 

Committee Members Present: 
Nancy Pearson, Board Chair 
Renee Williams, Treasurer 
Joy Stanton Secretary 
Brian McElhone 
Myrna Allen  
Vina Delcomyn 
 

Coalition Staff Present: 
Dawn Bell, Chief Executive Officer 
Kim Brumfield, Office Manager 
Tajaro Dixon, Grants and Operations Manager 
Patty Larkin, Finance Manager 
 

Committee Members Absent: 
Brian Graham, EXCUSED 
 

Others Present: 
 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 The meeting was called to order at 10:34 a.m. by N. Pearson and roll was called; quorum was 
present with 7 of 8 committee members in attendance. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No Comments. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEW OF CREDIT CARD STATEMENTS 
Employee Credit card statements were presented to the committee for the review of the months 
of April, May and June (Amex and Visa cards issued to D. Bell, K. Brumfield)  We not only 
keep documented backup but we are also monitored on these cc statements.  There were no 
comments or questions. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
APPROVAL OF FEBRUARY 1, 2017 EXEC ADMIN MEETING MINUTES * 
 

1. V. Delcomyn motioned to approve the February 1, 2017 Exec Admin 
Meeting Minutes, as presented.  J. Stanton seconded the motion.  No 
discussion – motion passed unanimously. 

  

 

APPROVAL OF FINANCIALS AS OF JUNE 30, 2017* 

The following reports were included in the packet for review of Financials ending June 30, 2017: 
 Finance Manager Report  
 Balance Sheet 
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 
 Profit & Loss YTD Comparison 

 

 
2. R. Williams motioned to approve the Financials as of June 30, 2017.  J. 

Stanton seconded the motion.  No discussion – motion passed 
unanimously. 

 

 
APPROVAL OF ELCNF BUDGET REVISION #5* 
The Coalition received a new VPK Notice of Award dated July 14, 2017.  This award increased 
funding by $83,000 due to a re-obligation of funds to cover fiscal year 2016-2017 anticipated 
expenditures. 

 
3. R. Williams motioned to approve the ELCNF Budget Revision #5.  V. 

Delcomyn seconded the motion.  No discussion – motion passed 
unanimously. 

 

 
APPROVAL OF ECS 2017-18 CONTRACT AMENDMENT #0001-17* 
Revisions: 
 

A. Item #1 was added to the 2016/2017 contract with contract amendment #4 due to an 
extended award to July 31, 2017.  However, the 2017/2018 contract did not include this 
language.  This item is to add the same language to this year’s contract and will remain in 
the contract for all renewal years.   



 

B. Items #2, 3, and 7 were to update the School Readiness budgeted amounts per the July 1, 
2017 Notice of Award. 

C. Items #3 and 7 were to update the Performance Funding Project budgeted amounts per 
the July 1, 2017 Notice of Award.  And, to delete language regarding the University of 
Florida/Lastinger Center for Learning (Early Learning Florida) contracts, as they were 
not funded for 2017/2018. 

D. Items #4, 5, 6, and 8 were to update the Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten and VPK Outreach 
and Awareness budgeted amounts per the July 1, 2017 Notices of Awards. 

 
 

4. R. Williams  motioned to approve the ECS 2017/18 Contract Amendment 
#0001-17.  J. Stanton seconded the motion.  No discussion – motion passed 
unanimously.  T. Matheny abstained from the vote.  

 

 

 

 

APPR0VAL OF THE NORTH FLROIDA 16/17 OAMI GRANT AGREEMENT* 
RETRO ACTIVE Board Approval of VPK OAMI Grant Agreement for FY 2017-18, effective 
July 1, 2017.   
 

If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 

 The Coalition would not receive the required grant funding to perform outreach and 
awareness of the VPK programs nor the monitoring initiative for VPK.   

 

 

5. V. Delcomyn motioned to approve the North Florida 16/17 OAMI Grant 
Agreement.   J. Stanton seconded the motion.  No discussion – motion 
passed unanimously.  T. Matheny abstained from voting.  

 

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE COOP* 
The COOP (Continuity Of Operation Plan) establishes policy and guidance to ensure the continued 
execution of the mission-essential functions continue should an emergency threaten or 
incapacitates operations and require the relocation of selected personnel and functions of the 
Coalition and/or its subcontractor(s). 

 

The COOP is to be revised if needed and submitted to OEL by October 1st of every year.  The 
revisions made to this year’s COOP are: 



 

 Changes in names, titles and contact information. 

 

6. R. Williams motioned to approve the 17/18 COOP.  V. Delcomyn 
seconded the motion.  No discussion- motion passed unanimously with 
modification noted. 

 

APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH WORLDWIDE IT* 
THIS ITEM WAS PULLED FROM THE AGENDA. 
 
K. Brumfield explained that WWIT is now Compass MSP, and due to the company change that 
just took place on August 8th with new tax id we are redoing the contract to reflect the new 
company information.  This will be part of the September board meeting for approval. No vote 
was taken  

 

 

 
REVIEW OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP 
INFORMATIONAL  
 
 
COMMITTEE ABSENTEEISM LOG  
Informational; no comments.  
 
 
COMMITTEE COMMENT 
No comments 
 
NEXT MEETING 
September 20, 2017 10:30 a.m. –ANNUAL Board Meeting at World Golf Renaissance Resort 
Convention Center 
November 1, 2017 10:30 a.m. – Executive Administrative Committee Meeting, Conference Call 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT* 
 

 

7. R. Williams motioned to approve adjournment. M. Allen seconded the 
motion.  10:55 am No discussion- motion passed unanimously. 

 



 

 
Minutes submitted by, Kim Brumfield, Office Manager 
 



 
 
 
 

1 
 
 
 

Amendment 0003-17 to Primary Services Contract 
Episcopal Children’s Services 

 
 
THIS AMENDMENT, entered into between the Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. hereinafter referred 
to as the Coalition, and Episcopal Children’s Services, hereinafter referred to as the Contractor, amends the 2017-18 
primary services contract as follows: 
 
 

Item 
# 

Page 
# 

Headings and Text 

1 15 F. Collaboration:  (School Readiness/Quality/Performance Funding Project – PFP) 

   
The Contractor will administer OEL’s Performance Funding Project/OEL Grant 
Agreement Contract with the Coalition (OEL NOA #PP438) which is 
incorporated by reference as if set forth in its entirety herein except that to the 
extent that any terms or conditions as provided for under the Project 
Contract/Grant conflict with the terms and conditions as stated in this agreement, 
the language of this agreement shall control.  Administering OEL’s Performance 
Funding Project will include providing Classroom Assessment Scoring System 
(CLASS) observation-based assessments to all participating providers and Making 
the Most of Classroom Interactions (MMCI) training to providers assigned to the 
provider group. The Contractor will also perform administrative, contract 
management, and project management responsibilities as listed in the 2017/2018 
OEL Grant Agreement (Exhibit 2 C (8), (8.1.1, 8.2, and 8.3) in support of the 
Early Learning Performance Funding Project.  This funding is exclusive of the 
annual OEL School Readiness Grant Award funding.  Contractor reimbursements 
will be based on all provisions as set forth in the OEL Performance Funding Project 
Contract/OEL Grant Agreement. 
 
The Contractor will administer OEL’s Early Learning Florida Contract [in 
cooperation with The University of Florida Board of Trustees, a public body 
corporate of the State of Florida for the benefit of its Lastinger Center for 
Learning (“University”)] with the Coalition which is incorporated by reference as 
if set forth in its entirety herein except that to the extent that any terms or 
conditions as provided for under the Early Learning Florida Contracts conflict with 
the terms and conditions as stated in this agreement, the language of this 
agreement shall control.  The Contractor will perform the services described within 
each contract’s defined scope of services.  The Contractor will be reimbursed based 
on the payment schedules and terms and conditions as set forth within each 
contract. 

 
2 19 VII. Method of Payment (SR) 
   

This is a cost-reimbursement contract.  The Coalition shall pay the contractor for the 
delivery of service provided in accordance with the terms of this contract for a total 
dollar amount up to and not to exceed $14,997,291.  This funding is inclusive of 
the annual OEL School Readiness Grant Award which does not include local match 
funds or CCEP, and is based on availability of funds. If county allocations are 
reduced at the state level, contracts will be amended accordingly. Up to and 
no more than $358,142 (97BBA) may be allocated to adminsitrative expenditures.  



 
 
 
 

2 
 
 
 

Local match will be reimbursed based on funding from match raised from local 
grants up to the amount earned or the amount of the local grants, whichever is 
less. 
 
In addition, the Coalition shall pay the contractor for the delivery of service 
provided in accordance with the terms and conditions of OEL’s Performance 
Funding Project Contract/OEL Grant Agreement with the Coalition (OEL 
NOA #PP438) for a total dollar amount up to and not to exceed $234,216.  
This funding is exclusive of the annual OEL School Readiness Grant Award 
funding.  Contractor reimbursements will be based on all provisions as set forth in 
the OEL Performance Funding Project Contract/OEL Grant Agreement. 
 
AND, the Coalition shall pay the contractor for the delivery of service provided in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of OEL’s Pay for Performance 
Contract [in cooperation with The University of Florida Board of Trustees, a 
public body corporate of the State of Florida for the benefit of its Lastinger 
Center for Learning (“University”)] with the Coalition for a total dollar 
amount up to and not to exceed $35,000. 
 

3 
 

64-65 Attachment 9 School Readiness Budget 

   
(Attached, Pages 3-4, replaces original contract attachment and is incorporated as 
part of this amendment) 
 

  END OF AMENDMENTS 

   

  



 
 
 
 

3 
 
 
 

  ATTACHMENT 9 

SCHOOL READINESS BUDGET 

State of Florida Notice of Award No. SR438 
DUNS # 130220796 

CFDA# / Name Federal Award # 

93.558 / TANF G1702FLTANF (27.83%) 

93.575 / CCDF Discretionary G1702FLCCDF (40.63%) 

93.596 / CCDF Mandatory   G1702FLCCDF (31.45%) 

93.667 / SSBG G1701FLS0SR (0.08%) 

 
 

Grand Total 100% 

 

Description OCA 

ECS  
Dollar  
Amounts 
  

  
Coalition  
Dollar 
Amounts 
  

TOTALS 
(NOA 
Amounts) 

General 
Administration 

97BBA, 97FIR, 
97LCA $358,142 $425,000  $783,142 

Non-direct Services 97BBD 250,205 0 250,205 

Systems 97SYS 0 0 0 

Eligibility 
Determination 97BDE 666,835 0                   666,835 

Quality 
97QOO, 97QHS, 97QCS, 97QST, 
97QCR, 97QAS, 97QTA, 97QPD, 
97QPT  

770,043 260,669              1,030,712 

Infant & Toddler 
Services 

97INT, 97ICR, 
97IAS, 97ICS  263,803 0             263,803 

Inclusion 97QIN 116,481 0         116,481 

Resource & Referral 97Q14 234,647 0 234,647 

Total Non-Slots  (Non-Direct) $2,660,156 $685,669 $3,345,825

  
Gold Seal Payments  

97GSD 520,000 0                    520,000 

Slots, to include: 
*CCEP funding of $20,118  11,817,135 0 11,817,135 

Total Slots  (Direct Services) $12,337,135 $0 $12,337,135

Grand Total   $14,997,291 $685,669     $15,682,960

 



 
 
 
 

4 
 
 
 

Supplemental Contracts  

(Exclusive of OEL School Readiness Grant Award Funding) 

 Performance Funding Project (OEL NOA #PP438) (CFDA# 93.575 
CCDF, Federal Award No. G1702FLCCDF – 100% funding)  (DUNS 
#130220796) 

Total  (total dollar amount up to and not to exceed) 

 

$234,216

 

Pay for Performance (through the University of Florida) 

Contract SR400 

(total dollar amount up to and not to exceed) 

 

 

 

$35,000

 

  



 
 
 
 

5 
 
 
 

THIS AMENDMENT shall begin on November 1, 2017, or the date, on which the amendment has been signed by both 
parties, whichever is later. 

All provisions in the contract and any attachments thereto in conflict with this amendment shall be and are hereby changed to 
conform to this amendment. 

All provisions not in conflict with this amendment are still in effect and are to be performed at the level specified in the 
contract. 

This amendment is hereby made a part of the contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this  5   page amendment to be executed by their officials thereunto 
duly authorized. 

 

                                                                     

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF   EPISCOPAL CHILDREN’S SERVICES, 
NORTH FLORIDA     INC.  
 
 
 
NAME        NAME        
 
TITLE        TITLE        
 
SIGNED       SIGNED       
 
DATE        DATE        

 
 



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 1 of 9 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

This Contract for Services (this “Contract”) is made and entered into as of this 15th day of 
 September 2017, by and between The University of Florida Board of Trustees, a public body corporate of 
the State of Florida for the benefit of its Lastinger Center for Learning (“Contractor”), and Early Learning 
Coalition of North Florida (“Subcontractor”) pursuant to the University contract SR400 with the Office of 
Early Learning (OEL) and authorized Standard Contract Attachment 1, Section 23, Subcontracts and 
Attachment 5, Section C. 1.10. 

Contractor hereby engages Subcontractor to provide the Services (hereinafter defined), and 
Subcontractor hereby accepts such engagement, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract. 

1. Services.  Subcontractor shall perform the services described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference (the “Services”).  All Services shall be performed in a timely,
diligent and professional manner, consistent with the best practices of Subcontractor’s industry.

2. Term.  The term of this Contract is set forth on Exhibit A.

3. Compensation and Payment.  Contractor shall pay Subcontractor as the total compensation
for the Services the amount set forth on Exhibit A, on the payment schedule set forth on Exhibit
A. Subcontractor shall not be entitled to any other fees, reimbursements or compensation under
this Contract.  Subcontractor shall be responsible for the payment of all general excise taxes,
income taxes and any other taxes required to be paid to federal, state and local taxing authorities
with respect to any fees or other amounts paid to Subcontractor.   Payment shall be made within
thirty (30) days of satisfactory completion of the Services and presentation of a properly
completed invoice.

4. Addresses for Notices.  All Notices under this Contract shall be made in writing the addresses
set forth on Exhibit A.

5. Standard Terms.  The standard terms and conditions of this Contract are set forth on Exhibit
B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All capitalized terms, unless otherwise
defined herein, shall have the meanings given to them in the Standard Terms.  In the event of a
conflict between the terms contained herein and the Standard Terms, the terms contained herein
shall prevail.

6. Additional Terms.  The additional terms and conditions of this Contract prescribed by
University of Florida Contract SR400 are set forth on Exhibit C only, attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference.  In the event of a conflict between the terms contained herein
and the Standard Terms, the terms contained herein shall prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract as of the date first set forth above. 

CONTRACTOR:  SUBCONTRACTOR: 

The University of Florida Board of Trustees  
for the benefit of Lastinger Center for Learning 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 

Signature: Signature: ___________________________ 

Name: Name:   

Title: Title:   

Date: Date:   



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 2 of 9 

EXHIBIT A 

1. Scope of Services (Section 1).

A. Conduct pre-Classroom Assessment Scoring System® (CLASS®) observations.

1. Assessors and ELC staff must hold a valid certificate for any CLASS® tools,
and all ELCs must submit CLASS® certifications for staff conducting
observations.

2. Make contact with provider and schedule observations using approved
observer script.

3. All pre-CLASS® observations, with four (4) cycles of twenty (20) minutes,
must be completed by 10/20/17.

4. Enter all CLASS numerical scores into WELS within two (2) business days of
conducting assessment.

5. Compose and enter observation notes for every observation dimension into
WELS within two (2) business days of conducting assessment.

6. CLASS observations may be submitted for invoicing if they were designated
by the Office of Early Learning as “active” at the time of the observation,
regardless of their status at the end of the assessment period.

B. Conduct post-CLASS® observations.

1. Assessors and ELC staff must hold a valid certificate for any CLASS® tools,
and all ELCs must submit CLASS® certifications for staff conducting
observations.

2. Make contact with provider and schedule observations using approved
observer script.

3. All post-CLASS® observations must be conducted between 4/1/2018 and
6/30/2018.

4. Conduct each post-assessment, with four (4) cycles of twenty (20) minutes,
using the appropriate CLASS® tool.

5. Enter all CLASS numerical scores into WELS within two (2) business days of
conducting assessment.

6. Compose and enter observation notes for every observation dimension into
WELS within two (2) business days of conducting assessment.

7. CLASS observations may be submitted for invoicing if they were designated
by the Office of Early Learning as “active” at the time of the observation,
regardless of their status at the end of the assessment period.

2. Term (Section 2).  The term of this Contract shall begin on September 15, 2017 and
terminate on July 31, 2018.    The term of this Contract may be extended by Contractor for
an additional period of six (6) months.  If Contractor desires to exercise this extension right,
it shall so notify Subcontractor no later than thirty (30) days prior to the date the initial
term expires.



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 3 of 9 

3. Compensation and Payment Schedule (Section 3).

Description Unit Cost Evidence of Completion 
Pre-CLASS® 
observation 

$350 per 
observation 

Record of observation uploaded into 
WELS 

Post- CLASS® 
observation 

$350 per 
observation 

Record of observation uploaded into 
WELS 

The total amount payable under this Agreement for Assessor duties shall not exceed 
$35,000. 

4. Notices (Section 4).

Contractor: Subcontractor: 

Lastinger Center for Learning  
P. O. Box 11705 
Gainesville, FL 32611 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 
2450 Old Moultrie Road Suite 103 
St. Augustine, FL 32086 

Attention: Donald Pemberton, Director Attention:  
Phone: (352) 273-4108 Phone: 904-342-2267 
Fax:     (352) 392-3505 Email: plarkin@elcnorthflorida.org 
Email: dpemberton@coe.ufl.edu 

mailto:dpemberton@coe.ufl.edu


University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 4 of 9 

EXHIBIT B 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA CONTRACT ADDENDUM 
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Availability of Funds.  The Contractor’s performance and obligation to pay under this 
Contract is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature of the State of 
Florida and/or the allocation of funds through contractor or grant programs. 

Tax Exempt. The University of Florida, an agency of the State of Florida, is exempt 
from State of Florida Sales Tax and Federal Excise Tax.  Tax Exempt ID number  
85-5012646174C-8.

Payment. Subcontractor shall submit bills for compensation for services or expenses in 
detail sufficient for a proper pre-and post-audit.  Subcontractor is responsible for any 
taxes due under this Agreement.  UF’s performance and obligation to pay under the 
Agreement is contingent upon the State of Florida Legislature’s annual appropriation 
and/or the allocation of funds through contractor or grant programs.  UF will make 
payment in accordance with UF Regulation 6C1-3.022.  If UF does not issue payment 
within 30 days of receipt of a proper invoice, UF will pay to Subcontractor, an interest 
penalty at the rate established pursuant to §55.03(1) Fla. Stat.  Subcontractors 
experiencing payment problems may contact the Vendor Ombudsman at (352) 392-1241. 

Relationship of the Parties. Subcontractor is an independent contractor, and neither 
Subcontractor nor Subcontractor’s employees, agents, or other representatives shall be 
considered UF employees or agents. It is understood and agreed by the parties that 
nothing contained in this Contract shall be construed to create a joint venture, 
partnership, association, or other affiliation or like relationship between the parties, it 
being specifically agreed that their relationship is and shall remain that of independent 
parties to a contractual relationship as set forth in this Contract. Subcontractor shall not 
use UF’s name, trademarks, logos, or marks without UF’s prior written approval. 
Subcontractor represents and warrants that it is not on the Convicted Vendor List (see 
Fla. Stat. § 287.133(2)(a)).  Each party hereby assumes any and all risk of personal injury 
and property damage attributable to the willful or negligent acts or omissions of that party 
and the officers, employees, and agents thereof. Subcontractor also assumes such risk 
with respect to the willful or negligent acts or omissions of Subcontractor’s 
subcontractors or persons otherwise acting or engaged to act at the instance of 
Subcontractor in furtherance of Subcontractor fulfilling Subcontractor's obligations under 
the Agreement.  

Confidentiality of Information. If Subcontractor is exposed to UF’s confidential 
information, Subcontractor will keep such information confidential and will act in 
accordance with any guidelines and applicable laws (such as FERPA and the Gramm-
Leach Bliley Act.) Confidential information shall not include information that is a public 
record pursuant to Florida law (Florida Statutes Chapter 119), and UF will respond to 
public records requests without any duty to give Subcontractor prior notice.  This 
provision shall survive termination of the Agreement.  



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 5 of 9 

General Provisions. A. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as an 
indemnification of the Subcontractor by UF or as a waiver of sovereign immunity beyond 
that provided in Fla. Stat. §768.28.  B. This Agreement may not be assigned or modified 
by either party except as agreed to in writing and signed by the parties, and this 
Agreement shall be binding upon the parties’ successors and assigns.  C. Any clauses in 
the Agreement regarding: arbitration or mediation, restrictions on the hiring of 
Subcontractor’s employees or grants of exclusivity to Subcontractor are null and void.  D.  
The Contractor cannot agree to waive trial by jury or any other procedural or substantive 
right such as the right to a specific type of relief.  E. Subcontractor will have and 
maintain types and amounts of insurance that at a minimum cover the Subcontractor’s (or 
subcontractor’s) exposure in performing this Agreement.  UF is self-insured, and will 
provide its Certificate of Insurance upon request; UF is not required to obtain additional 
insurance for this Agreement.  F.  This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of 
Florida and venue of any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be in the state courts 
in Alachua County, Florida.  

Sovereign Immunity.  The Contractor, as a public entity, is protected by sovereign 
immunity from tort liability, subject to a limited statutory waiver.  The Contractor will 
not agree to (i) indemnify or hold harmless any Subcontractor; (ii) be liable for 
Subcontractor’s attorneys’ fees under any circumstances; or (iii) binding arbitration or 
mediation.  The Agreement shall not be construed or interpreted as (i) denying to either 
party any remedy or defense available to such party under the laws of the State of 
Florida; (ii) the consent of Contractor or the State of Florida or their agents and agencies 
to be sued; or (iii) a waiver of either Contractor’s or the State of Florida’s sovereign 
immunity beyond the limited waiver provided in section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

Ownership of Works. All reports, studies, plans, deliverables, strategies, materials, 
discoveries, inventions, processes, designs, plans, trade secrets, data, information, 
documents and other work (collectively, "Work"), whether of a technical nature or not, 
made, developed or obtained by Subcontractor pursuant to this Contract or in connection 
with the provision of the Services shall be the sole and exclusive property of Contractor 
and any copyrightable Work shall be deemed a "work made for hire" under the United 
States copyright laws. Should such Work not constitute a "work made for hire" under the 
United States copyright laws, Subcontractor hereby grants, transfers, assigns, and 
conveys to Contractor and its successors and assigns, the entire right, title, and interest in 
the Work or any part thereof. Immediately upon termination of this Contract for any 
reason, all Work, in whatever form, shall be turned over to Contractor. This provision 
shall survive the termination of this Contract. 

Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard. For e-commerce business and/or 
credit card transactions, Subcontractor agrees to be bound by the requirements and terms 
of the Rules of all applicable Card Associations, as amended from time to time, and be 
solely responsible for security and maintaining confidentiality of Card transactions 
processed by means of electronic commerce up to the point of receipt of such transactions 
by Bank. 

Proposer is required to be in compliance with the requisites of the SAS 70 and/or 



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 6 of 9 

Payment card Industry Data Security Standard. 

Payment and Invoice Information. All invoices will need to contain either a UF 
purchase order number or the 8-digit department ID number of the department with 
which you are doing business. All invoices for payment should be submitted to the 
University of Florida via: 

Email: email a .pdf or .tif file to ufl@invoices.corcentric.com. The file must be attached 
to the email and not embedded within the email. There can be multiple files per email but 
each file should only contain one invoice. 

or 
Mail to: UF – Accounts Payable 
PO Box 115350 
971 Elmore Drive 
Gainesville, FL 32611-5350 

Force Majeure.  “Event of Force Majeure” means any strike (except those involving the 
employees or agents of the party seeking protection of this clause), lockout, labor dispute, 
embargo, flood, earthquake, storm, dust storm, lightning, fire, epidemic, act of God, war, 
national emergency, civil disturbance or disobedience, riot, sabotage, terrorism, restraint 
by governmental order or any other occurrence beyond the reasonable control of the party 
in question. Subcontractor shall give prompt notice to University of Florida of any actual 
or potential labor dispute which may affect performance of this contract. 

Applicable Law. The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Florida and the rule and regulations of the Florida Board of 
Governors and the Contractor. Contractor and Subcontractor shall have all remedies 
afforded each by said law. The venue in any action or litigation commenced to enforce 
the Agreement shall be instituted in Alachua County, Florida. 

Indemnification. The Successful Subcontractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless the University of Florida Board of Trustees, the University of Florida, the State 
of Florida and the Florida Board of Governors, its officers, agents, and employees from 
any and all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, loss, cost, and damages of every 
kind and description, including attorneys’ fees and/or litigation expenses, which may be 
brought or made against or incurred on account of loss of or damage to any property or 
for injuries to or death of any person, caused by, arising out of, or contributed to, in 
whole or in part, by reasons of any act, omission, professional error, fault, mistake, or 
negligence of Successful Subcontractor, its employees, agents, representatives, or 
subcontractors, their employees, agents, or representatives in connection with or incident 
to the performance of the Agreement. Successful Subcontractor’s obligation under this 
provision shall not extend to any liability caused by the sole negligence of the University 
of Florida Board of Trustees, Contractor, or its officers, agents, and employees. DUE TO 
ITS SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY, UF WILL NOT AGREE TO INDEMNIFY 



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 7 of 9 

SUBCONTRACTOR. 

Public Records. All contract information becomes subject to Florida Public Records law, 
F.S. Chapter 119. IF THE SUBCONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS 
REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, TO THE SUBCONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE 
PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT 
THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (352) 846-3903,  
email: PR-Request@ufl.edu, PO Box 113156, Gainesville, FL 32611-
3156 

Travel. Any travel authorized by this Contract and being compensated separately shall be 
compensated in accordance with  the Contractor’s travel policy 
(http://www.fa.ufl.edu/directives-and-procedures/travel/) and Subcontractor shall be 
required to provide all back-up documentation required by the policy. 

Conflict of Interest. Subcontractors must disclose the name(s) of any officer, director, or 
agent who is also an employee of the University of Florida.  Further, Subcontractor must 
disclose the name of any University of Florida employee who owns, directly or 
indirectly, an interest of five percent (5%) or more in the Subcontractor’s business. 

State Vendor Lists. Subcontractor represents that neither it nor its affiliates is currently 
on, and for the past 36 months has been on, the State of Florida’s discriminatory vendor 
list (F.S. 287.134) or convicted vendor list (F.S. 287.133).   

Notices. All notices, consents, approvals and other communications (collectively, 
“Notices”) which may be or are required to be given by either party shall be properly 
given only if made in writing and sent to the address of Contractor or Subcontractor, as 
applicable, set forth in Exhibit A, as the same is modified in accordance herewith, by 
hand delivery, U.S. Certified Mail (Return Receipt Requested) or nationally recognized 
overnight delivery service.  Telephone and facsimile numbers and e-mail addresses are 
listed for convenience only.  Either party may change its address for Notices by giving 
written notice to the other party in accordance with this provision. 

Termination. UF may terminate this Agreement by giving Subcontractor prior written 
notice of termination.  UF shall only be liable for payment of services rendered and 
accepted by UF prior to the date of termination.  

Unilateral Cancellation. This Contract may be unilaterally canceled by Contractor for 
refusal by Subcontractor to allow public access to all documents, papers, letters or other 
materials subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and made or received 

mailto:PR-Request@ufl.edu
http://www.fa.ufl.edu/directives-and-procedures/travel/


University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 8 of 9 

by Subcontractor in conjunction with this Contract. 

Miscellaneous. This Contract may be modified or altered only by written agreement 
signed by both Contractor and Subcontractor. Time is of the essence with respect to this 
Contract. Subcontractor shall not assign, transfer, delegate, subcontract, or otherwise 
dispose of, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, or by operation of law, any right or 
obligation under this Contract. This Contract constitutes the entire agreement of the 
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Contract may be executed in 
multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed a duplicate original, but all of 
which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

Record-Keeping.  Subcontractor agrees to retain all records relating to this Contract 
during the term and for a period of five (5) years thereafter and to make those records 
available at all reasonable times for inspection and audit by Contractor and/or the State of 
Florida Auditor General.  In connection with an inspection or audit, the records shall be 
provided at the Contractor’s Gainesville campus or other location designated by 
Contractor upon reasonable notice to Subcontractor. 



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 9 of 9 

EXHIBIT C 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS FROM SR400 

Attachment 1, Section 23 

Subcontracts 

The Contractor shall not subcontract any of the work contemplated under the Contract 
without prior written approval of the Office. Any subcontract or other transfer of duties 
and responsibilities without prior approval of the Office shall be null and void.  

The Contractor agrees to be responsible for all work performed and all expenses incurred 
with the Project. If the Office permits the Contractor to subcontract all or part of the work 
contemplated under the Contract, including entering into subcontracts with vendors for 
services and commodities, it is understood by the Contractor that all such subcontract 
arrangements shall be evidenced by a written document which shall include a detailed 
scope of work, specific deliverables with quantifiable, measurable and verifiable units, 
performance measures and financial consequences and shall be subject to prior review 
and approval by the Office. The review of the written subcontract document by the Office 
will be limited to a determination of whether or not subcontracting is permissible and the 
inclusion of applicable terms and conditions of the Contract. In subcontracting, the 
Contractor shall ensure that the subcontractor has the same responsibilities to the 
Contractor with respect to the subcontracted work that the Contractor has to the Office.  

The Contractor shall administer the activities of the subcontractor. The Contractor further 
agrees that the Office shall not be liable to the subcontractor for any expenses or 
liabilities incurred under the subcontract and the Contractor shall be solely liable to the 
subcontractor for all expenses and liabilities incurred under the subcontract. The 
Contractor, at its expense, will defend the Office against such claims. The Contractor 
retains sole responsibility for the qualifications of all persons working on this Contract 
whether Contractor’s employees or any 
Subcontractors’ employees. 

In the event the State approves transfer of the Contractor’s obligations, the Contractor 
remains responsible for all work performed and all expenses incurred in connection with 
the representatives of the Contractor. 

Attachment 5, Section C. 1.10 

CLASS coordination 

The Contractor may subcontract with other entities to conduct CLASS pre and post 
observations and/or data entry with participating providers.  



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 1 of 9

 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
 

This Contract for Services (this “Contract”) is made and entered into as of this 15th day of 
September 2017, by and between Early Learning Coalition of North Florida (“ELC”), and Episcopal 
Children’s Services (“Contractor”) in cooperation with the University of Florida Board of Trustees, a 
public body corporate of the State of Florida for the benefit of its Lastinger Center for Learning 
(“University”), pursuant to the University contract SR400 with the Office of Early Learning (OEL) and 
authorized Standard Contract Attachment 1, Section 23, Subcontracts and Attachment 5, Section C. 
1.10. 

 
ELC  hereby  engages  Contractor  to  provide  the  Services  (hereinafter  defined),  and 

Contractor hereby accepts such engagement, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract. 
 

1. Services. C ontractor shall perform the services described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference (the “Services”). All Services shall be performed in a timely, 
diligent and professional manner, consistent with the best practices of  Contractor’s industry. 

 
2. Term. The term of this Contract is set forth on Exhibit A. 

 

3. Compensation and Payment.  ELC shall pay Contractor as the total compensation for the 
Services the amount set forth on Exhibit A, on the payment schedule set forth on Exhibit 
A. Contractor shall not be entitled to any other fees, reimbursements or compensation under 
this Contract. Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of all general excise taxes, 
income taxes and any other taxes required to be paid to federal, state and local taxing authorities 
with respect to any fees or other amounts paid to Contractor. Payment shall be made within 
thirty (30) days of satisfactory completion of the Services and presentation of a properly 
completed invoice. 

 
4. Addresses for Notices. All Notices under this Contract shall be made in writing the addresses 

set forth on Exhibit A. 
 

5. Standard Terms. The standard terms and conditions of this Contract are set forth on Exhibit 
B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. All capitalized terms, unless otherwise 
defined herein, shall have the meanings given to them in the Standard Terms. In the event of a 
conflict between the terms contained herein and the Standard Terms, the terms contained herein 
shall prevail. 

 
6. Additional Terms. The additional terms and conditions of this Contract prescribed by 

University of Florida Contract SR400 are set forth on Exhibit C only, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference. In the event of a conflict between the terms contained herein 
and the Standard Terms, the terms contained herein shall prevail. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract as of the date first set forth above.  

ELC: Early Learning Coalition of North Florida Contractor: Episcopal Children’s Services 

Signature:    Signature:    

 
Name: Dawn E. Bell 

 
Name: Connie Stophel 

 
Title: C. E. O. 

 
Title: C. E. O. 

 
Date:    

 
Date:    



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 2 of 9 

EXHIBIT A 
 

1. Scope of Services (Section 1). 
 

A. Conduct pre-Classroom Assessment Scoring System® (CLASS®) observations. 
 

1. Assessors and ELC staff must hold a valid certificate for any CLASS® tools, 
and all ELCs must submit CLASS® certifications for staff conducting 
observations. 

2. Make contact with provider and schedule observations using approved 
observer script. 

3. All pre-CLASS® observations, with four (4) cycles of twenty (20) minutes, 
must be completed by 10/20/17. 

4. Enter all CLASS numerical scores into WELS within two (2) business days of 
conducting assessment. 

5. Compose and enter observation notes for every observation dimension into 
WELS within two (2) business days of conducting assessment. 

6. CLASS observations may be submitted for invoicing if they were designated 
by the Office of Early Learning as “active” at the time of the observation, 
regardless of their status at the end of the assessment period. 

 
B. Conduct post-CLASS® observations. 

 
1. Assessors and ELC staff must hold a valid certificate for any CLASS® tools, 

and all ELCs must submit CLASS® certifications for staff conducting 
observations. 

2. Make contact with provider and schedule observations using approved 
observer script. 

3. All post-CLASS® observations must be conducted between 4/1/2018 and 
6/30/2018. 

4. Conduct each post-assessment, with four (4) cycles of twenty (20) minutes, 
using the appropriate CLASS® tool. 

5. Enter all CLASS numerical scores into WELS within two (2) business days of 
conducting assessment. 

6. Compose and enter observation notes for every observation dimension into 
WELS within two (2) business days of conducting assessment. 

7. CLASS observations may be submitted for invoicing if they were designated 
by the Office of Early Learning as “active” at the time of the observation, 
regardless of their status at the end of the assessment period. 

 
 
2. Term (Section 2). The term of this Contract shall begin on September 15, 2017 and 

terminate on July 31, 2018. The term of this Contract may be extended by ELC for an 
additional period of six (6) months. If ELC desires to exercise this extension right, it shall 
so notify Contractor no later than thirty (30) days prior to the date the initial term 
expires. 



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 3 of 9 

 
 

3. Compensation and Payment Schedule (Section 3). 
 

Description Unit Cost Evidence of Completion 
Pre-CLASS® 
observation 

$350 per 
observation 

Record of observation uploaded into 
WELS 

Post- CLASS® 
observation 

$350 per 
observation 

Record of observation uploaded into 
WELS 

 

The total amount payable under this Agreement for Assessor duties shall not exceed 
$35,000. 

 

4. Notices (Section 4). 
 

University: ELC: 
 

Lastinger Center for Learning 
P. O. Box 11705 
Gainesville, FL 32611 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 
2450 Old Moultrie Road Suite 103 
St. Augustine, FL 32086 

 
 

Attention: Donald Pemberton, Director Attention:    
Phone: (352) 273-4108 Phone: 904-342-2267 
Fax: (352) 392-3505 Email: plarkin@elcnorthflorida.org 
Email: dpemberton@coe.ufl.edu 



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 4 of 9 

EXHIBIT B 
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Availability of Funds. The ELC’s performance and obligation to pay under this 
Contract is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature of the State of 
Florida and/or the allocation of funds through ELC or grant programs. 

 
Tax Exempt. The University of Florida, an agency of the State of Florida, is exempt 
from State of Florida Sales Tax and Federal Excise Tax. Tax Exempt ID number 
85-5012646174C-8. 

 
Payment. Contractor shall submit bills for compensation for services or expenses in 
detail sufficient for a proper pre-and post-audit.  Contractor is responsible for any taxes 
due under this Agreement.  UF’s performance and obligation to pay under the 
Agreement is contingent upon the State of Florida Legislature’s annual appropriation 
and/or the allocation of funds through ELC or grant programs. UF will make payment 
in accordance with UF Regulation 6C1-3.022.  If UF does not issue payment within 30 
days of receipt of a proper invoice, UF will pay to Contractor, an interest penalty at the 
rate established pursuant to §55.03(1) Fla. Stat.  Contractors experiencing payment 
problems may contact the Contractor Ombudsman at (352) 392-1241. 

 
Relationship of the Parties. Contractor is an independent contractor, and neither 
Contractor nor Contractor’s employees, agents, or other representatives shall be 
considered UF employees or agents. It is understood and agreed by the parties that 
nothing contained in this Contract shall be construed to create a joint venture, 
partnership, association, or other affiliation or like relationship between the parties, it 
being specifically agreed that their relationship is and shall remain that of independent 
parties to a contractual relationship as set forth in this Contract. Contractor shall not use 
UF’s name, trademarks, logos, or marks without UF’s prior written approval.  Contractor 
represents and warrants that it is not on the Convicted Vendor List (see Fla. Stat. § 
287.133(2)(a)). Each party hereby assumes any and all risk of personal injury and 
property damage attributable to the willful or negligent acts or omissions of that party 
and the officers, employees, and agents thereof.  Contractor also assumes such risk with 
respect to the willful or negligent acts or omissions of Contractor’s subcontractors or 
persons otherwise acting or engaged to act at the instance of Contractor in furtherance 
of Contractor fulfilling Contractor's obligations under the Agreement. 

 
Confidentiality of Information. If Contractor is exposed to UF’s confidential 
information, Contractor will keep such information confidential and will act in 
accordance with any guidelines and applicable laws (such as FERPA and the Gramm- 
Leach Bliley Act.) Confidential information shall not include information that is a public 
record pursuant to Florida law (Florida Statutes Chapter 119), and UF will respond to 
public records requests without any duty to give Contractor prior notice.  This provision 
shall survive termination of the Agreement. 



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 5 of 9 

General Provisions. A. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as an 
indemnification of the Contractor by UF or as a waiver of sovereign immunity beyond 
that provided in Fla. Stat. §768.28. B. This Agreement may not be assigned or modified 
by either party except as agreed to in writing and signed by the parties, and this 
Agreement shall be binding upon the parties’ successors and assigns. C. Any clauses in 
the Agreement regarding: arbitration or mediation, restrictions on the hiring of 
Contractor’s employees or grants of exclusivity to Contractor are null and void. D. The 
University  cannot agree to waive trial by jury or any other procedural or substantive 
right such as the right to a specific type of relief.  E. Contractor will have and maintain 
types and amounts of insurance that at a minimum cover the Contractor’s (or 
subcontractor’s) exposure in performing this Agreement.  UF is self-insured, and will 
provide its Certificate of Insurance upon request; UF is not required to obtain additional 
insurance for this Agreement.  F.  This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of 
Florida and venue of any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be in the state courts 
in Alachua County, Florida. 

 
Sovereign Immunity.  The University, as a public entity, is protected by sovereign 
immunity from tort liability, subject to a limited statutory waiver. The University will 
not agree to (i) indemnify or hold harmless any Contractor; (ii) be liable for Contractor’s 
attorneys’ fees under any circumstances; or (iii) binding arbitration or mediation.  The 
Agreement shall not be construed or interpreted as (i) denying to either party any 
remedy or defense available to such party under the laws of the State of Florida; (ii) the 
consent of University or the State of Florida or their agents and agencies to be sued; or 
(iii) a waiver of either Contractor’s or the State of Florida’s sovereign immunity beyond 
the limited waiver provided in section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 
Ownership of Works. All reports, studies, plans, deliverables, strategies, materials, 
discoveries, inventions, processes, designs, plans, trade secrets, data, information, 
documents and other work (collectively, "Work"), whether of a technical nature or not, 
made, developed or obtained by Contractor pursuant to this Contract or in connection 
with the provision of the Services shall be the sole and exclusive property of University 
and any copyrightable Work shall be deemed a "work made for hire" under the United 
States copyright laws. Should such Work not constitute a "work made for hire" under the 
United States copyright laws, Contractor hereby grants, transfers, assigns, and conveys 
to University and its successors and assigns, the entire right, title, and interest in the 
Work or any part thereof. Immediately upon termination of this Contract for any reason, 
all Work, in whatever form, shall be turned over to University. This provision shall 
survive the termination of this Contract. 

 
Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard. For e-commerce business and/or 
credit card transactions, Contractor agrees to be bound by the requirements and terms of 
the Rules of all applicable Card Associations, as amended from time to time, and be 
solely responsible for security and maintaining confidentiality of Card transactions 
processed by means of electronic commerce up to the point of receipt of such transactions 
by Bank. 

 
Proposer is required to be in compliance with the requisites of the SAS 70 and/or 



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 6 of 9 

Payment card Industry Data Security Standard. 
 
 
 
 
Payment and Invoice Information. All invoices will need to contain either a UF 
purchase order number or the 8-digit department ID number of the department with 
which you are doing business. All invoices for payment should be submitted to the 
University of Florida via: 

 
Email: email a .pdf or .tif file to ufl@invoices.corcentric.com. The file must be attached 
to the email and not embedded within the email. There can be multiple files per email but 
each file should only contain one invoice. 

or 
Mail to: UF – Accounts Payable 
PO Box 115350 
971 Elmore Drive 
Gainesville, FL 32611-5350 

 
Force Majeure. “Event of Force Majeure” means any strike (except those involving the 
employees or agents of the party seeking protection of this clause), lockout, labor dispute, 
embargo, flood, earthquake, storm, dust storm, lightning, fire, epidemic, act of God, war, 
national emergency, civil disturbance or disobedience, riot, sabotage, terrorism, restraint 
by governmental order or any other occurrence beyond the reasonable control of the party 
in question. Contractor shall give prompt notice to University of Florida of any actual or 
potential labor dispute which may affect performance of this contract. 

 

Applicable Law. The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Florida and the rule and regulations of the Florida Board of 
Governors and the Contractor. ELC and Contractor shall have all remedies afforded 
each by said law. The venue in any action or litigation commenced to enforce the 
Agreement shall be instituted in Alachua County, Florida. 

 
Indemnification. The Successful Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
the University of Florida Board of Trustees, the University of Florida, the State of 
Florida and the Florida Board of Governors, its officers, agents, and employees from 
any and all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, loss, cost, and damages of every 
kind and description, including attorneys’ fees and/or litigation expenses, which may be 
brought or made against or incurred on account of loss of or damage to any property or 
for injuries to or death of any person, caused by, arising out of, or contributed to, in 
whole or in part, by reasons of any act, omission, professional error, fault, mistake, or 
negligence of Successful Contractor, its employees, agents, representatives, or 
subcontractors, their employees, agents, or representatives in connection with or incident 
to the performance of the Agreement. Successful Contractor’s obligation under this 
provision shall not extend to any liability caused by the sole negligence of the University 
of Florida Board of Trustees, ELC, or its officers, agents, and employees. DUE TO ITS 
SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY, UF WILL NOT AGREE TO INDEMNIFY 



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 7 of 9 

SUBCONTRACTOR. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Records. All contract information becomes subject to Florida Public Records law, 
F.S. Chapter 119. IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS 
REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, TO THE SUBCONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE 
PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT 
THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (352) 846-3903, email:  
PR-Request@ufl.edu, PO Box 113156, Gainesville, FL 32611-          
3156 

Travel. Any travel authorized by this Contract and being compensated separately shall be 
compensated in accordance with the Contractor’s travel policy 
(http://www.fa.ufl.edu/directives-and-procedures/travel/) and Contractor shall be 
required to provide all back-up documentation required by the policy. 

 
Conflict of Interest. Contractors must disclose the name(s) of any officer, director, or 
agent who is also an employee of the University of Florida.  Further, Contractor must 
disclose the name of any University of Florida employee who owns, directly or 
indirectly, an interest of five percent (5%) or more in the Contractor’s business. 

 
State Vendor Lists. Contractor represents that neither it nor its affiliates is currently 
on, and for the past 36 months has been on, the State of Florida’s discriminatory vendor 
list (F.S. 287.134) or convicted vendor list (F.S. 287.133). 

 
Notices. All notices, consents, approvals and other communications (collectively, 
“Notices”) which may be or are required to be given by either party shall be properly 
given only if made in writing and sent to the address of ELC or Contractor, as 
applicable, set forth in Exhibit A, as the same is modified in accordance herewith, by 
hand delivery, U.S. Certified Mail (Return Receipt Requested) or nationally recognized 
overnight delivery service.  Telephone and facsimile numbers and e-mail addresses are 
listed for convenience only.  Either party may change its address for Notices by giving 
written notice to the other party in accordance with this provision. 

 
Termination. UF may terminate this Agreement by giving ELC/Contractor prior written 
notice of termination.  UF shall only be liable for payment of services rendered and 
accepted by UF prior to the date of termination. 

 
Unilateral Cancellation. This Contract may be unilaterally canceled by ELC for refusal 
by Contractor to allow public access to all documents, papers, letters or other materials 
subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and made or received 



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 8 of 9 

by Contractor in conjunction with this Contract. 
 
Miscellaneous. This Contract may be modified or altered only by written agreement 
signed by both ELC and Contractor. Time is of the essence with respect to this Contract. 
Contractor shall not assign, transfer, delegate, subcontract, or otherwise dispose of, 
whether voluntarily or involuntarily, or by operation of law, any right or obligation 
under this Contract. This Contract constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof. This Contract may be executed in multiple 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed a duplicate original, but all of which taken 
together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
Record-Keeping.  Contractor agrees to retain all records relating to this Contract during 
the term and for a period of five (5) years thereafter and to make those records available 
at all reasonable times for inspection and audit by ELC/University and/or the State of 
Florida Auditor General.  In connection with an inspection or audit, the records shall be 
provided at the University’s Gainesville campus or other location designated by 
University upon reasonable notice to Contractor. 



University of Florida Contract for Services v.2017.7.27 Page 9 of 9 

EXHIBIT C 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS FROM SR400 

 
Attachment 1, Section 23 

 
Subcontracts 

 
The Contractor shall not subcontract any of the work contemplated under the Contract 
without prior written approval of the Office/ELC. Any subcontract or other transfer of 
duties and responsibilities without prior approval of the Office/ELC shall be null and 
void. 

 
The Contractor agrees to be responsible for all work performed and all expenses incurred 
with the Project. If the Office/ELC permits the Contractor to subcontract all or part of the 
work contemplated under the Contract, including entering into subcontracts with vendors 
for services and commodities, it is understood by the Contractor that all such subcontract 
arrangements shall be evidenced by a written document which shall include a detailed 
scope of work, specific deliverables with quantifiable, measurable and verifiable units, 
performance measures and financial consequences and shall be subject to prior review 
and approval by the Office/ELC. The review of the written subcontract document by the 
Office/ELC will be limited to a determination of whether or not subcontracting is 
permissible and the inclusion of applicable terms and conditions of the Contract. In 
subcontracting, the Contractor shall ensure that the subcontractor has the same 
responsibilities to the Contractor with respect to the subcontracted work that the 
Contractor has to the Office/ELC. 

 
The Contractor shall administer the activities of the subcontractor. The Contractor further 
agrees that the Office/ELC shall not be liable to the subcontractor for any expenses or 
liabilities incurred under the subcontract and the Contractor shall be solely liable to the 
subcontractor for all expenses and liabilities incurred under the subcontract. The 
Contractor, at its expense, will defend the Office/ELC against such claims. The 
Contractor retains sole responsibility for the qualifications of all persons working on 
this Contract whether Contractor’s employees or any Subcontractors’ employees. 

 
In the event the State approves transfer of the Contractor’s obligations, the Contractor 
remains responsible for all work performed and all expenses incurred in connection with 
the representatives of the Contractor. 

 
Attachment 5, Section C. 1.10 

CLASS coordination 

The Contractor may subcontract with other entities to conduct CLASS pre and post 
observations and/or data entry with participating providers. 



  

 
Pam Stewart 
Commissioner of 
Education 
Rodney MacKinnon 
Executive Director 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Published: September 27, 2017 
Revised: 

 
 
 

Program Integrity School Readiness Policy Unit 
2017-19 Coalition Plan 

 
Coalition Plan Certification  

 

A Publication of the 
Office of Early Learning 

 

 

 

 

 

September 2017 

 

 

 



 
  Office of Early Learning 

Coalition Plan Submission Certification 2017-19 
 

2 
 

Purpose  

The intention of this certification is to validate and certify the coalition’s approved School 
Readiness (SR) Program Plan, on file with the Office of Early Learning (OEL) School Readiness 
Policy Section, is current and in use. It is OEL’s intent to request only those SR Program Plan 
Elements that have changed, require annual updates or require updates based on rules that became 
effective after the previous coalition plan submission and approval. 
 
By completing this certification, the early learning coalition acknowledges and confirms that 
School Readiness services will be executed as approved by OEL and in compliance with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations and the approved State Child Care and 
Development Fund (CCDF) Plan. 
 
Instructions 

Indicate “Yes,” “No” or “N/A” to certify the coalition’s current SR Program Plan aligns with the 
most recently approved plan element on file at OEL, as indicated by the “approval date” column. 
The “N/A” option should only be used for those elements that are not applicable to the coalition, 
(example: Element I.E. Fiscal Agent Contract). If the coalition indicates “No” for any of the 
elements below, the coalition should submit a plan amendment to OEL for review. If a coalition 
needs to amend an element, please indicate this in the comments/explanation column.  

The elements shaded in grey require the coalition to submit updated attachments to reflect recent 
revisions to rule. The coalition will submit a plan amendment for each element for approval from 
OEL.  

Once the coalition submits the completed certification with all elements requiring amendments, 
OEL will have 45 days to review and approve the revised SR Program Plan.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
  Office of Early Learning 

Coalition Plan Submission Certification 2017-19 
 

3 
 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF NORTH FLORIDA 
COMPLETION DATE:   SELECT DATE 

Certifications Approval 
Date 

Yes No N/A Comments/Explanations 

I. Coalition Operations - 
A The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its most recently SR 

plan-approved Board Roster. If the coalition has a new board roster or has 
experienced recent changes in its board composition, submit a plan 
amendment and upload the new roster onto SharePoint in the 2017-19 
Coalition Plan Submission Folder. 

10/12/2017 
 

          

B The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Business Organization chart, which includes the coalition’s business units 
by title and function. The chart also includes position titles for each position 
within a unit. If the coalition has a new business organization chart or has 
experienced recent changes in its business organization, submit a plan 
amendment and upload the new business organization chart onto SharePoint 
in the 2017-19 Coalition Plan Submission Folder. 

7/22/2016          

C The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Articles of Incorporation. If the coalition has a new board roster or has 
experienced recent changes in its articles of incorporation, submit a plan 
amendment and upload the new articles of incorporation onto SharePoint in 
the 2017-19 Coalition Plan Submission Folder. 

10/22/2015          

D The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Bylaws. If the coalition has a new board roster or has experienced recent 
changes in its bylaws, submit a plan amendment and upload the new bylaws 
onto SharePoint in the 2017-19 Coalition Plan Submission Folder. 

10/22/2015          

E The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Fiscal Agent Contract. If the coalition has a new fiscal agency contract or 
has experienced recent changes in its fiscal agent contract, submit a plan 
amendment and upload the new fiscal agent contract onto SharePoint in the 
2017-19 Coalition Plan Submission Folder.  

SELECT DATE          



 
  Office of Early Learning 

Coalition Plan Submission Certification 2017-19 
 

4 
 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF NORTH FLORIDA 
COMPLETION DATE:   SELECT DATE 

Certifications Approval 
Date 

Yes No N/A Comments/Explanations 

*This applies only to coalitions that are not organized as a corporation or other business 
entity. 

F The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Procurement policies and procedures. If the coalition has a new 
procurement policy and procedure or has experienced recent changes in its 
procurement policies and procedures, submit a plan amendment and upload 
the new policies and procedures onto SharePoint in the 2017-19 Coalition 
Plan Submission Folder.  

* The extended deadline for federal requirement to revise procurement policies is 
December 2017. 

11/30/2016 
 

         

G The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Tangible Personal Property Maintenance policies and procedures. If the 
coalition has a new policy or procedure or has experienced recent changes 
in its policies and procedures, submit a plan amendment and upload the 
policies and procedures onto SharePoint in the 2017-19 Coalition Plan 
Submission Folder. 

11/30/2016 
  

         

H The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Records Maintenance policies and procedures. If the coalition has a new 
policy or procedure or has experienced recent changes in its policies and 
procedures, submit a plan amendment and upload the policies and 
procedures onto SharePoint in the 2017-19 Coalition Plan Submission 
Folder. 

4/20/2017          

I The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Information Technology Security Controls policies and procedures. If the 
coalition has a new policy or procedure or has experienced recent changes 
in its policies and procedures, submit a plan amendment and upload the 
policies and procedures onto SharePoint in the 2017-19 Coalition Plan 
Submission Folder. 

8/18/2017 
  

         



 
  Office of Early Learning 

Coalition Plan Submission Certification 2017-19 
 

5 
 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF NORTH FLORIDA 
COMPLETION DATE:   SELECT DATE 

Certifications Approval 
Date 

Yes No N/A Comments/Explanations 

J The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Disbursements policies and procedures. If the coalition has a new policy or 
procedure or has experienced recent changes in its policies and procedures, 
submit a plan amendment and upload the policies and procedures onto 
SharePoint in the 2017-19 Coalition Plan Submission Folder.  

* The extended deadline for federal requirement to revise procurement policies is to 
December 2017.

11/30/2016          

II. Implementation - 
A Minimum Children to be Served by Care Level – OEL requires the 

coalition to submit the minimum number of children to be served by care 
level.  

7/24/2017         

B School Readiness Application and Waiting List Procedures – OEL 
requires the coalition to submit a revised application and waiting list 
policies and procedures for 2017-19. 

7/24/2017       

C Eligibility and Enrollment Policies and Procedures – OEL requires the 
coalition submit a revised eligibility and enrollment policies and procedures 
for 2017-19. 

7/24/2017       submitted revised 
policies on 10/3/17 

D The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Parent Access and Choice policies and procedures. If the coalition has a 
new policy or procedure or has experienced recent changes in its policies 
and procedures, submit a plan amendment and upload the policies and 
procedures onto SharePoint in the 2017-19 Coalition Plan Submission 
Folder. 

10/22/2015 
 

 

         

E The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Sliding Fee Scale and associated policies. If the coalition has a new policy 
or procedure or has experienced recent changes in its scale, policies and 
procedures, submit a plan amendment and upload the scale, policies and 

6/6/2017          



 
  Office of Early Learning 

Coalition Plan Submission Certification 2017-19 
 

6 
 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF NORTH FLORIDA 
COMPLETION DATE:   SELECT DATE 

Certifications Approval 
Date 

Yes No N/A Comments/Explanations 

procedures onto SharePoint in the 2017-19 Coalition Plan Submission 
Folder. 

F The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Pre/Post Assessment Use policies and procedures. If the coalition has a 
new policy or procedure or has experienced recent changes in its policies 
and procedures, submit a plan amendment and upload the policies and 
procedures onto SharePoint in the 2017-19 Coalition Plan Submission 
Folder. 

10/22/2015          

G The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Provider Payment Rates and associated policies and procedures. If the 
coalition has new payment rates, policy or procedure or has experienced 
recent changes in its payment rates, policies and procedures, submit a plan 
amendment and upload the policies and procedures onto SharePoint in the 
2017-19 Coalition Plan Submission Folder. 

1/27/2017          

III. Quality Activities and Services - 
A The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 

Child Care Resource and Referral and School-Aged Care activities. If the 
coalition has a new practice, submit a plan amendment and upload the 
revisions onto SharePoint in the 2017-19 Coalition Plan Submission Folder. 

7/24/2017          

B The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Infant and Toddler Early Learning Programs activities. If the coalition 
has a new practice, submit a plan amendment and upload the revisions onto 
SharePoint in the 2017-19 Coalition Plan Submission Folder. 

7/24/2017          

C The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Inclusive Early Learning Programs activities. If the coalition has a new 
practice, submit a plan amendment and upload the revisions onto 
SharePoint in the 2017-19 Coalition Plan Submission Folder. 

10/22/2015          



 
  Office of Early Learning 

Coalition Plan Submission Certification 2017-19 
 

7 
 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF NORTH FLORIDA 
COMPLETION DATE:   SELECT DATE 

Certifications Approval 
Date 

Yes No N/A Comments/Explanations 

D Quality and Performance Report – OEL requires the coalition to submit 
the Quality and Performance Report. 

        pending 
ELCsubmission                   

IV. Financial Management - 
A Budget – OEL requires the coalition to submit a budget annually by August 

25th. 
8/31/2017        

B Prior Year Revenues and Expenditures – OEL requires the coalition to 
submit its prior year’s revenues and expenditures report annually by 
October 1st. 
 

SELECT DATE       submitted to FABs 
on 9/29/17 

V. Monitoring - 
A Monitoring Plan and Procedures – OEL requires the coalition to submit 

the monitoring plan and procedures for monitoring SR Program Providers. 
7/24/2017        

B The coalition certifies that it is operating according to its SR plan-approved 
Grievance/Complaint policies and procedures. If the coalition has a new 
policy or procedure or has experienced recent changes in its policies and 
procedures, submit a plan amendment and upload the policies and 
procedures onto SharePoint in the 2017-19 Coalition Plan Submission 
Folder. 

10/6/2016          

VI. Coalition Plan Validation -  
A Public Input – A SR program plan a coalition submits must include 

documentation that the coalition has solicited from the local community and 
considered comments regarding the plan.  

          10/3/17 submission 

For coalition use only. 
The coalition certifies that it will provide all services compliance with the plan as OEL approved. The coalition further certifies that it will provide that it will provide the local 
services in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations and the State Child Care and Development Fund Plan that Federal Department of 
Health and Human Services approved. 



 
  Office of Early Learning 

Coalition Plan Submission Certification 2017-19 
 

8 
 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF NORTH FLORIDA 
COMPLETION DATE:   SELECT DATE 

Certifications Approval 
Date 

Yes No N/A Comments/Explanations 

Authorized Signature:  Printed Name: Title:  Date:  

For OEL use only. 
OEL review. After receipt of a complete school readiness plan or amendment (including required supporting documents), OEL shall review the certification and approve, 
reject, or approve with conditions the provisions of the certification and provide written notification to the early learning coalition of its action within 30 business days of 
receipt of the completed document. OEL shall base its approval, rejection, or approval with conditions on the coalition’s compliance with Chapter 1002, Part VI, F.S., the 
federal Child Care and Development Fund (CCDF) Block Grant Florida State Plan, the federal CCDF regulations located at Title 45 Code of Federal Regulations Part 98, 
Subparts B through G and K and the School Readiness Plan Guide. The coalition shall not implement school readiness plans or amendments without the express written 
approval of OEL. 

Policy Analyst:   Completion Date:  Select Date  Policy Supervisor:     Completion Date:  Select Date  

 



 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.  
Exec Admin Meeting November 1, 2017 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of District Superintendent of Schools or Designee, Kristi 
Simpkins second term. 

Reason for Recommended Action Kristi has served one complete four year term on the Coalition 
Board and has agreed to serve a seconded term at this time. 
 
Kristi’s second term would extend from Dec. 2017- Dec. 2021. 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 The Coalition would lose a mandated Member bringing us 

very close to being out of compliance with our total board 
membership. 
  

How the Action will be accomplished Exec/Admin Approval, Board Ratification; then OEL will be 
notified via Plan Amendment/Board Roster submission. 

 
 
 



   1

Consulting Agreement 
 
This contract is entered into between Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor,” and Kim Brumfield, hereinafter referred to as the 
“Consultant.” 
 
 
I.  THE CONSULTANT AGREES: 
 
 A.  To provide services according to the terms and conditions specified herein. 
 

B. That the consultant shall not assign the responsibility nor subcontract for any 
portion of the work contemplated in this contract to another party without prior 
written approval of the contractor. 
 

C.  In performing the responsibilities under the agreement, and by signing this agreement, 
the CONSULTANT hereby agrees to fully comply with the following certifications and 
assurances:  

 
Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) 
The CONSULTANT agrees to comply with E.O. No. 11246, Equal Employment Opportunity (30 Federal 
Register (F.R.) 12319, 12935, 3 CFR, 1964-1965 comp. p. 339), Sept. 24, 1965, as E.O. 11375, 
Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity, of Oct. 13, 1967, amended, 
and as the Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR part 60) Office of Federal Compliance Programs, 
Equal Opportunity, Department of Labor supplements. See 45 CFR part 92.36(i)(3). 
 
Certification regarding debarment, suspension and other responsibility matters –primary 
covered transaction 
As required by E.O.(s) 12549 and 12689, Debarment and Suspension, and implemented at 45 CFR Part 
85, Government wide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement) for prospective participants in 
primary covered transactions, no contract shall be made to parties the General Services Administration’s 
Excluded Parties List System identifies as excluded from Federal Procurement or Nonprocurement 
Programs. This list contains the names of parties debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded by 
agencies, and contractors declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than E.O. 
12549. Contracts with awards that exceed the small purchase threshold shall provide the required 
certification regarding their exclusion status and that of their principal employees.  
The federal government imposes this requirement in order to protect the public interest, and to ensure 
that only responsible organizations and individuals do business with the government and receive and 
spend government grant funds. Failure to adhere to these requirements may have serious consequences 
(e.g., disallowance of cost, termination of project or debarment). To assure that this requirement is met, 
there are four options for obtaining satisfaction that sub-grantees and contractors are not suspended, 
debarred or disqualified. The CONSULTANT through the duly appointed undersigned representative, 
certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, its principals or its officers –  

1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily 
excluded by any federal department or agency. The Federal Excluded Parties list is currently 
located at https://www.epls.gov/ and also available on the Florida Department of Management 
Services website. The United States Department of Agriculture Food Program’s National 
Disqualification List is available through the Florida Department of Health. 

2. Have not, within a three-year period preceding the agreement, been convicted of or had a civil 
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense connected to 
obtaining, attempting to obtain or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or 
contract under a public transaction; violating federal or state antitrust statutes; or embezzlement, 
theft, forgery, bribery, records falsification or destruction, making false statements or receiving 
stolen property. 



   2

3. Are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity 
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in this certification’s 
paragraph B.2.  

4. Have not, within a three-year period preceding the agreement, had one or more public 
transactions (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or default. 

Where the prospective CONSULTANT is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, 
such prospective CONSULTANT shall attach an explanation to the agreement. 

 
  
II. THE CONTRACTOR AGREES: 
 

A. To pay for contracted services according to the terms and conditions stated herein. 
 
III. THE CONTRACTOR AND CONSULTANT MUTUALLY AGREE: 
 
 A. Effective and ending dates: 
 

1. This contract shall be for the period Dec 6, 2017 to Dec 5, 2018. This may 
be extended with an addendum, as deemed necessary by the Contractor. 

 
2. This contract can be severed at any time by either the Contractor or the 

Consultant, without penalty. 
 
B. Services shall be performed as follows:   

 
1. Be available for contract work on an as need basis. 

 
2. Assist in all office manager related area’s as deemed appropriate by the 

CEO. 
 

3. Provide other technical assistance as deemed appropriate by the CEO to 
assist in meeting deadlines, as required by the Coalition or the Office of Early 
Learning. 

 
4. Fulfill all tasks in the shortest period of time consistent with good 

workmanship. 
 

5. Check email regularly (kbrumfield@elcnorthflorida.org), a minimum of once 
per day. 

 
 C.   SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
 
This agreement relates exclusively to the provision of consulting services to be rendered to the 
CONTRACTOR.  The Consultant has been determined to be a vendor, and therefore would be exempt 
from sub-recipient requirements.   
 
The CONSULTANT shall fulfill his/her designated responsibilities as outlined within this agreement. This 
agreement incorporates Attachment 1, “Office Manager Job Description” for a listing of itemized tasks 
that training and assistance may be completed in the course of this agreement.  The CONSULTANT will 
be responsible for any additional training needs the CONTRACTOR requests and the CONSULTANT will be 
responsible for submitting an itemized list of services rendered and time allotted for each service.  This 
itemization will be submitted with the CONSULTANT’S invoice. 
 
 



   3

IV. COMPENSATION: 
 

A. All hours will be tracked.  Tracking documentation MUST be submitted with the 
invoice for reimbursement. 
 

B. Checking email and answers will be at no charge, unless the task(s) take longer than 
15 minutes to research and write. 

 
C. The consultant shall receive compensation, at the rate of $23 per hour, upon 

submission of an invoice.  
 

D. Contract value is not to exceed $12,000.00 
 

E. Consultant will invoice the Contractor on a weekly basis, unless the total bill is less 
than 10 hours, in which case the invoice will be held for the following week.   

 
F. The consultant shall be responsible for all taxes, including Social Security and 

Federal taxes.  
 
G. Termination at Will - This contract may be terminated by any party upon no less 

than thirty (30) calendar days notice, without cause, unless a lesser time is mutually 
agreed upon by both parties.  Said notice shall be delivered by read-receipt e-mail, 
certified mail-return receipt requested or in person with proof of delivery. 
 

H. Termination for Breach - This contract may be terminated by the Coalition for 
nonperformance by the Contractor upon no less than a seven (7) calendar day notice 
in writing to the Contractor. Waiver or breach of any provisions of this contract shall 
not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach and shall not be construed to be a 
modification of the terms of this contract. In the event of such termination, the 
Coalition shall be liable for payment only for services rendered prior to the effective 
date of termination.  Contractor shall give the Coalition written notice of any 
perceived breach and it shall give the Coalition ten (10) business days to cure any 
perceived breach under the contract. 

 
          

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   4

V. All of the terms and conditions of this contract are agreed upon by the parties. 
 
In witness thereof, the parties hereto have caused this two (2)-page contract to be executed and 
duly authorized by signatures below. 

 
Contractor  Consultant 

 
Early Learning Coalition of North 
Florida, Inc. 
2450 Old Moultrie Rd. Ste. 103 
St. Augustine, FL  32086 

  
Kim Brumfield 
677 Delespine Ave.  
St. Augustine, FL 32084 

 
 
 
 

  

Signature 
Name:  Dawn E. Bell 
Title:  CEO 

 Signature 
Name: Kim Brumfield 

 
 
 

  

Date  Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   5

ATTACHMENT 1 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
Position: Office Manager 
 
Reports to: Chief Executive Officer 
 
Compensation:  $32,000 - $44,000 annually + benefits; salary based on experience and credentials 
 
Basic Function:  Responsible for the day to day office operations, providing clerical and administrative 
support to the Chief Executive Officer and Staff; is the initial point of contact for the public, agencies and 
volunteers.  Responsible for oversight of board management and all human resource functions. 
 
Employment Status: This position is classified as exempt status from the basic requirements stipulate 
by the Fair Labor Standards Act as provided by Section 13(a)(1) of the FLSA as defined by Regulations, 29 
CFR Part 541. 
              
General Responsibilities: 

 Oversees the day-to-day office operations 
 Performs clerical work 
 Ensures the timely preparing of meeting agendas and support materials for all meetings, including 

notification in compliance with Florida’s Government in the Sunshine Law.   
 Maintains schedule of meetings, Meeting notices/reminders to membership.  
 Preparation of board and committee packets, and meetings; takes and prepares minutes of 

meetings 
 Responsible for maintaining updated board membership information 
 Tracks employee attendance and leave 
 Verifies payroll, hours worked, insures accuracy of PARs, completion of leave forms by staff, 

reports time to payroll company 
 Responsible for managing and coordinating all employee benefits (401K, insurances, etc.) 
 Ensures implementation of personnel policies and procedures, updates and distributes as 

necessary, enforces policies 
 Assists in making travel arrangements for staff when necessary 
 Ensures completeness of personnel files, required documentation, background checks, and claim 

processing (worker’s comp and general liability) 
 Process personnel status (new/term/change forms) 
 Processes all volunteer applications and background screenings 
 Drafts and distributes staff memorandum/communications  
 File Maintenance, and archiving of files.  
 Coordinate transfer and disposal of files/records as per the retention schedule and policies are 

carried out effectively. 
 Manage office/vendor relations. 
 Responsible for all purchasing, including procurement of items per policy and procedures. 
 Maintenance of office leases, or related contracts, review invoices for accuracy. 
 Assist in check processing for vendors on a weekly basis (to include logging, gathering back up 

documentation and verifying the accuracy of the check documentation, as well as obtaining 
signatures on checks/check requests). 



   6

 Maintains inventory per State Guidance as Property Custodian Delegate 
 Processes ECS 2nd review of invoices. 
 Assists with the organization and implementation of special events. 
 Reviews all travel submitted for reimbursement, as it pertains to State Guidance 
 Attend any pertinent conferences, trainings and meetings conducted by the Office of Early 

Learning or others as recommended by your supervisor. 
 Creates needed materials (flyers, brochures, etc.) as requested. 
 Responsible for incoming and outgoing mail and postage 
 May have a purchasing card (p-card) or credit card assigned.  
 Emergency duties as explained in the ELC COOP (continuity of operations plan) 
 Work flexible hours and travel 
 Other duties as assigned. 

 
Knowledge, Skills and Ability Requirements: 

 Ability to apply significant knowledge of rules, regulations, policies and procedures.  
 Strong leadership capabilities 
 Administrative organizational skills 
 Ability to think analytically and strategically 
 Strong multi-tasking abilities 
 Effective time management and prioritization skills 
 Ability to develop new projects and programs 
 Ability to supervise employees 
 Excellent written and verbal communication skills 
 Ability to work independently 
 Ability to effectively and creatively solve problems 
 A valid driver’s license is required 
 Must have personal, reliable transportation 
 Certificates of acknowledgement required: Conflict of Interest, Code of Ethics, Confidentiality 

agreements, IT Systems and Security, Anti-Fraud, HR Employee Acknowledgement Form. 
 

 

Education/Experience Requirements: 
 Associate degree required; AA or AS in the area of business, office management, HR or related 

field. 
 Requires excellent interpersonal and public relations skills as well as the ability to interact with all 

levels of management. 
 Requires a valid Driver’s License and provide own reliable transportation. 

 
 
 































































Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting  

December 6, 2017 
 

 

 

VI. New/Unfinished Business 

 

A. Approval of Management Decision 
Recommendation for ECS Audit 2016/2017* 

 

* ACTION ITEM 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of Management Decision Recommendation for ECS 
Audit 2016/2017 

Reason for Recommended Action 
 
 
 
 
 

To approve management decision to consider the ECS annual 
audit properly reviewed and therefore resolved.  
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 

 The Coalition would not be in compliance with policy 
requiring committee approval. 
 

How the Action will be accomplished Management decision to be approved at 12/6/2017 Board 
meeting. 

 



ELC OF North Florida, Inc. 
 

Management Decision Recommendation 
ECS Audit Report 

For FYE June 30, 2017 
 
 
Ralston and Company, PA, CPA performed the June 30, 2017 audit of Episcopal 
Children’s Services, Inc.  Field work was completed on October 18, 2017. This report 
was received by ELC on October 20, 2017, and subsequently reviewed by ELC 
management and staff. The report and audited financial statements are on file and 
available to the Board for review at anytime. 
 
A summary of the audit results is as follows: 
 

1. The Independent Auditor’s Report 
a. Expressed an unmodified opinion on the consolidated financial statements 

of ECS. 
b. Stated no instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements 

of Episcopal Children's Services, Inc. were disclosed during the audit. 
c. Stated no material weaknesses were identified during the audit of the 

financial statements. 
d. Expressed an unmodified opinion on the major award programs. 
e. Stated no material weaknesses were identified during the audit of major 

federal programs. 
f. No findings were disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance 

with 2 CFR section 200.516(a). 
 

2. The Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls 
a. Expressed no opinion on ECS internal controls.   
b. Reported no material weaknesses to internal controls.  
c. Expressed no opinion on ECS compliance and other such matters.  
d. The results of the internal control testing disclosed no issues of 

noncompliance or other matters that would be required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 

 
3. Supplemental Information 

a. There were no findings in relation to prior audits. 
b. There were no current audit findings on the ECS Financial Statements. 
c. There were no current audit findings or questioned costs on the ECS 

Major Federal Awards Program Audit. 
d. ECS qualifies as a low risk auditee. 

 
 
With no audit findings, material weaknesses, or issues of noncompliance, this audit is 
considered complete. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting 

December 6, 2017 
 

 

 

VI. New/Unfinished Business 

 

B.  Approval of NEFEC Lease 2018-2019 
Continuation* 

* ACTION ITEM 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   



 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc 
Board Meeting 

December 6, 2017 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of NEFEC Lease Continuation 
Reason for 
Recommended Action 
 
 
 
 
 

Staff requests board approval to continue the NEFEC lease agreement of rental 
of office space in Palatka, FL.  The current lease ends January 31, 2018, and 
the new lease will start Feb. 1, 2018 and conclude January 31, 2019, with the 
option of automatic renewal for 12 months, starting Feb. 1 2019 and 
concluding on Jan. 31, 2020 at the monthly rental rate of $400.    
 
The space currently houses our Grants and Operations Manager, Tajaro Dixon, 
our Putnam County Reading Pals resource room, and one office is used for 
Coalition storage.  The total for all three rooms is $400.00 per month and 
includes electric.  
 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 

 The Coalition would need to find comparable office space for Putnam 
County staff, the Putnam County Reading Pals resources room, and 
storage. 

How the Action will be 
accomplished 

Approval of lease agreement listed above. 

 









































Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Board Meeting 

December 6, 2017 
 

 

 

VI. New/Unfinished Business 

 

C.  Approval of ECS 2017/2018 amendment 
#0004-17 and party signatures* 

 

* ACTION ITEM 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 

DESCRIPTION Episcopal Children’s Services 2017/2018 Contract Amendment #0004-17: 
Reason for 
Recommended Action 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Revisions: 
 
The Coalition received a new School Readiness Notice of Award dated 
November 1, 2017.  This award increased the SR allocation by $4,209.00 
(from restitution dollars that were received).   
 
The Coalition also received the “Performance Funding Project” Notice of 
Award dated November 27, 2017.  This award decreased from last year’s 
allocation, to $68,885. 
 
This contract amendment adds the restitution dollars to this year’s SR budget. 
This amendment also corrects the “PFP” amount that was previously in the 
17/18 contract (that was an OEL estimate based on last year’s budget). 
 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 

 ECS’s contract would not have the correct budgeted amounts for 
the School Readiness program. 

 ECS’s contract would not have this year’s correct budget amounts 
for the Performance Funding Project. 

 
How the Action will be 
accomplished 

Approval of ECS 2017/2018 amendment #0004-17, and party signatures. 

 



 
 
 
 

1 
 
 
 

Amendment 0004-17 to Primary Services Contract 
Episcopal Children’s Services 

 
 
THIS AMENDMENT, entered into between the Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. hereinafter referred 
to as the Coalition, and Episcopal Children’s Services, hereinafter referred to as the Contractor, amends the 2017-18 
primary services contract as follows: 
 
 

Item 
# 

Page 
# 

Headings and Text 

1 8-9 C.  RESOURCE MANAGEMENT (School Readiness) 

   
Pursuant to the Request for Proposal and the Contractor’s signed response, and 
the fact that this contract is upon a cost-reimbursement method of 
payment, the CONTRACTOR shall be fiscally responsible pursuant to the 
following: 

 
1. BUDGET SURPLUS/DEFICIT:  The Contractor shall serve no fewer than 

3,800 children with the slot dollars provided under this contract, unless 
the available School Readiness grant funding would not financially provide 
for all 3,800 slots.  Regardless of the total amount of funding for slots, 
the Coalition (through its Sub-Contractors) will ensure that no less than 
78% of School Readiness grant funds will be used for slot funding 
(excluding CCEP which is subject to a minimum expenditure of 81% on 
direct services). The slot funding will be expended within 1.5% under and 
0% over the contracted budget amount, with the understanding that the 
goal is to use 0.75% under. The CONTRACTOR further agrees that 
reimbursements under this contract shall be up to, and are capped at the 
total budgeted amount of funding for direct childcare slot funding which 
is $12,337,135 $12,340,418 to include all childcare cost centers, Gold 
Seal payments (if applicable), and CCEP (if applicable) and “Contracted 
Slots” (if applicable). This funding is inclusive of the annual OEL School 
Readiness Grant Award that does not include local match funds, and is 
based on availability of funds.  If county allocations are reduced at 
the state level, contracts will be amended accordingly. Gold Seal 
payments are subject to adjustments due to budget constraints.  
Additionally, the Contractor shall be responsible for actively soliciting and 
obtaining match funds in the (minimum) amount equal to 6% for the 
Economically Disadvantaged (BG 8) funding category for children in School 
Readiness Programs to be used only for slots, except when a match waiver 
is available and the contractor has shown a good faith effort to raise the 
6% Economically Disadvantaged match. 

 
 

2 19 VII. Method of Payment (School Readiness/PFP) 
   

This is a cost-reimbursement contract.  The Coalition shall pay the contractor for the 
delivery of service provided in accordance with the terms of this contract for a total 
dollar amount up to and not to exceed $14,997,291  $15,001,500.  This funding 
is inclusive of the annual OEL School Readiness Grant Award which does not 



 
 
 
 

2 
 
 
 

include local match funds or CCEP, and is based on availability of funds. If 
county allocations are reduced at the state level, contracts will be amended 
accordingly. Up to and no more than $358,142  $358,353 (97BBA) may be 
allocated to adminsitrative expenditures.  Local match will be reimbursed based on 
funding from match raised from local grants up to the amount earned or the 
amount of the local grants, whichever is less. 
 
In addition, the Coalition shall pay the contractor for the delivery of service 
provided in accordance with the terms and conditions of OEL’s “Performance 
Funding Project” Contract/OEL Grant Agreement with the Coalition (OEL 
NOA #PP438) for a total dollar amount up to and not to exceed $234,216 
$68,885.  This funding is exclusive of the annual OEL School Readiness Grant 
Award funding.  Contractor reimbursements will be based on all provisions as set 
forth in the OEL Performance Funding Project Contract/OEL Grant Agreement. 
 
AND, the Coalition shall pay the contractor for the delivery of service provided in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of OEL’s “Pay for Performance” 
Contract [in cooperation with The University of Florida Board of Trustees, a 
public body corporate of the State of Florida for the benefit of its Lastinger 
Center for Learning (“University”)] with the Coalition for a total dollar 
amount up to and not to exceed $35,000. 
 

3 
 

64-65 Attachment 9 School Readiness Budget 

   
(Attached, Pages 3-4, replaces original contract attachment and is incorporated as 
part of this amendment) 
 

  END OF AMENDMENTS 

   



 
 
 
 

3 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 9 

SCHOOL READINESS BUDGET 

State of Florida Notice of Award No. SR438 
DUNS # 130220796 

CFDA# / Name Federal Award # 

93.558 / TANF G1702FLTANF (27.83%) 

93.575 / CCDF Discretionary G1702FLCCDF (40.63%) 

93.596 / CCDF Mandatory   G1702FLCCDF (31.45%) 

93.667 / SSBG G1701FLS0SR (0.08%) 

 
 

Grand Total 100% 

 

Description OCA 

ECS  
Dollar  
Amounts 
  

  
Coalition  
Dollar 
Amounts 
  

TOTALS 
(NOA 
Amounts) 

General 
Administration 

97BBA, 97FIR, 
97LCA $358,142 $358,353 $425,000  $783,142 $783,353 

Non-direct Services 97BBD 250,205 250,752 0 250,205 250,752 

Systems 97SYS 0 0 0 

Eligibility 
Determination 97BDE 666,835 0                   666,835 

Quality 
97QOO, 97QHS, 97QCS, 97QST, 
97QCR, 97QAS, 97QTA, 97QPD, 
97QPT  

770,043 770,211 260,669      1,030,712 1,030,880 

Infant & Toddler 
Services 

97INT, 97ICR, 
97IAS, 97ICS  263,803 0             263,803 

Inclusion 97QIN 116,481 0         116,481 

Resource & Referral 97Q14 234,647 0 234,647 

Total Non-Slots  (Non-Direct) $2,660,156 
$2,661,082 $685,669 $3,345,825 

$3,346,751

  
Gold Seal Payments  

97GSD 520,000 0                    520,000 

Slots, to include: 
*CCEP funding of $20,118  

11,817,135 
11,820,418 0 11,817,135 

11,820,418 

Total Slots  (Direct Services) $12,337,135
$12,340,418 $0 $12,337,135

$12,340,418

Grand Total   $14,997,291
$15,001,500 $685,669     $15,682,960

$15,687,169



 
 
 
 

4 
 
 
 

 

Supplemental Contracts  

(Exclusive of OEL School Readiness Grant Award Funding) 

 Performance Funding Project (OEL NOA #PP438) (CFDA# 93.575 
CCDF, Federal Award No. G1702FLCCDF G1602FLCCDF – 100% 
funding)  (DUNS #130220796) 

Total  (total dollar amount up to and not to exceed) 

 

$234,216

$68,885

 

Pay for Performance (through the University of Florida) 

Contract SR400 

(total dollar amount up to and not to exceed) 

 

 

 

$35,000

 

  



 
 
 
 

5 
 
 
 

THIS AMENDMENT shall begin on December 6, 2017, or the date, on which the amendment has been signed by both 
parties, whichever is later. 

All provisions in the contract and any attachments thereto in conflict with this amendment shall be and are hereby changed to 
conform to this amendment. 

All provisions not in conflict with this amendment are still in effect and are to be performed at the level specified in the 
contract. 

This amendment is hereby made a part of the contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this  5  page amendment to be executed by their officials thereunto 
duly authorized. 

 

                                                                     

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF   EPISCOPAL CHILDREN’S SERVICES, 
NORTH FLORIDA     INC.  
 
 
 
NAME        NAME        
 
TITLE        TITLE        
 
SIGNED       SIGNED       
 
DATE        DATE        

 
 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting 

December 6, 2017 
 

 

 

VI. New/Unfinished Business 

 

D.  Approval of the Personnel Policies and 
Procedures Manual revisions regarding 

Severance Benefits in the event of a FORCED 
MERGER* 

 

* ACTION ITEM 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Revisions to the Coalition’s Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual 
Reason for Recommended 
Action 

Revisions: 
 
HR610 – Employment Termination,  

 deleted conditions for a workforce reduction severance allowance, so as to 
not conflict with the addition of the severance benefit in the 
case of a forced merger. 

 added to “Layoffs and Severance Benefits” section, a severance benefit 
specific to a FORCED MERGER. 

 
This policy is being revised due to the history of legislative attempts to force a 
reduction in the number of coalitions throughout Florida, and thereby attempting to 
force mergers of coalitions who do not volunteer to merge.  This revision will add 
this benefit for employees who not only have to endure the legislative session 
results each time this occurs, but also to ensure their financial stability should the 
ELC of North Florida ever be forced to merge with another coalition. 

 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 

 The Coalition would not have a severance benefit specific to the 
case of a forced merger. 

 
How the Action will be 
accomplished 

Approval of the Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual revisions listed 
above. 

 



                                              Early Learning Coalition of North Florida                                      1 
Personnel Policies and Procedures 

HR610 Employment Termination 
 
Effective Date: 02/19/08 
Revision Date: 02/03/10, 06/21/17, 12/06/17 

Termination of employment is an inevitable part of personnel activity within any organization, and many 
of the reasons for termination are routine.  Below are examples of some of the most common 
circumstances under which employment is terminated: 

* Resignation - voluntary employment termination initiated by an employee 
* Discharge - involuntary employment termination initiated by the organization 
* Layoff - involuntary employment termination initiated by the organization for non-disciplinary 

reasons 
* Retirement - voluntary employment termination initiated by the employee meeting age, length of 

service, and any other criteria for retirement from the organization 
 
 
Resignation and Retirement 
 
If an employee decides to leave their employment with the Coalition, it is requested that they provide 
their supervisor with at least two weeks advance notice.  Should the employee be a key staff person, it is 
requested that they give a minimum of 20 business days’ notice when leaving the Coalition.  The C.E.O. 
will be allowed the option of working out a transition plan with the departing key staff person that may or 
may not include compensation for work beyond the final date of employment.  If the key staff person 
works additional time past the final date of employment, the employee can receive compensation as an 
independent contractor while working with their replacement to adequately transition the job duties. The 
thoughtfulness is appreciated and will be noted favorably should the employee ever wish to reapply for 
employment with the Coalition. 
 
 
Layoffs and Severance Benefits 
 
Regular full- and part-time employees who have worked at least one consecutive twelve-month period 
and whose positions are eliminated by a workforce reduction may receive a severance allowance. 
Generally, severance pay is equal to one (1) week of pay for every year of employment, to a maximum of 
twelve (12) weeks' pay. The C.E.O., with approval of a board workgroup, at the time of a workforce 
reduction will set the agency's exact severance payments.  Severance payments based on available 
funding. 
 
In the case of a FORCED MERGER, all staff, TO INCLUDE THE CEO, will be paid 12 months in 
severance pay as well as 12 months of all health benefits paid.  
 
 
Exit Interviews 
 
The Coalition will generally schedule exit interviews at the time of employment termination.  The exit 
interview will afford an opportunity to discuss such issues as employee benefits, repayment of 
outstanding debts to the Coalition or return of the Coalition's property.  Suggestions, complaints, and 
questions can also be voiced. 
 
 
Employment at Will 
 
Since employment with the Coalition is based on mutual consent, both the employee and the Coalition 



                                              Early Learning Coalition of North Florida                                      2 
Personnel Policies and Procedures 

have the right to terminate employment at will, with or without cause, at any time.  Employees will 
receive their final pay in accordance with applicable state law. 
 
Change of Address 
Employees should notify the Coalition if their address should change during the calendar year in which 
termination occurs so that their tax information will be sent to the proper address. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting  

December 6, 2017 
 

 

 

VI. New/Unfinished Business 

 

E.  Approval of the Member Appointed by 
Executive Director of NEFEC for the mandated 

position of Programs for Children with 
Disabilities under the Federal Individuals with 

Disabilities Act:  Marsha Hill* 

 

* ACTION ITEM 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting December 6, 2017 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of the Member Appointed by Executive Director of 
NEFEC for the mandated position of Programs for Children with 
Disabilities under the Federal Individuals with Disabilities Act:  
Marsha Hill 
 

Reason for Recommended Action Marsha Hill is the Director of Instructional Services at NEFEC. Mrs. 
Hill oversees programs PreK-12 and has experience working with 
early childhood programs such as Reading First, Early Reading First 
and the Florida Diagnostic and Learning Resource System.  In 
addition, she has 20 years of experience in working with school 
districts in northeast Florida to implement programs for all students.  
 
Marsha’s ELCNF term would extend from March 2018 – March 
2022. 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 The Coalition would continue to be out of compliance by not 

having a mandated seat filled. 
  

How the Action will be accomplished Board approval; then OEL will be notified via Plan 
Amendment/Board Roster submission. 

 
 
 









Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Board Meeting 

December 6, 2017 
 

 

 

VI. New/Unfinished Business 

 

F.  Approval of the County Health Department 
Director or Designee, Mary Garcia* 

 

* ACTION ITEM 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting December 6, 2017 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of the County Health Department Director or 
Designee, Mary Garcia.  

Reason for Recommended Action Mary Garcia has been the Administrator of the Department of Health 
in Putnam County since 2013.  Ms. Garcia began her public health 
career as the director for Finance and Accounting at DOH St. Johns in 
2007.  She is an active member of National Association of County and 
City Health Officials (NACCHO) and helped in the development of 
the Management Essential Series for health officers.  A native of 
Florida and Putnam County, Ms. Garcia is involved in the community 
by volunteering for both the Putnam and South Putnam Christian 
Service Centers, the Putnam Homeless Coalition, St. Vincent de Paul 
Society, the Create Art League and Keep Putnam Beautiful.  
 
Mary’s ELCNF term would extend from December 2017- 
December 2021. 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 The Coalition would continue to be out of compliance by not 

having a mandated seat filled. 
  

How the Action will be accomplished Board approval; then OEL will be notified via Plan 
Amendment/Board Roster submission. 

 
 
 









Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting 

December 6, 2017 
 

 

 

VI. New/Unfinished Business 

 

 

G.  Review of Board Membership 

 

 

 
 

INFORMATIONAL 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 

B O A R D  M E M B E R S H I P  S U M M A R Y  
As of October 24, 2017 

 

Position Name Term Start Date Term End Date 
B A K E R  

Total Private Sector 0 
B R A D F O R D  

   
Total Private Sector 0 

C L A Y  
Governor Appointee Private Sector Ron Coleman November 22, 2013 April 30, 2016 
Governor Appointee Private Sector *Brian H. Graham, Vice Chair May 14, 2015 April 30, 2019 

Private Sector *Vina Delcomyn July 2011 July 2019 
Total Private Sector 3 

N A S S A U  
District Superintendent of Schools or Designee Kristi Simpkins December 2013 December 2017 

Total Private Sector 0 
P U T N A M  

Representative of Programs for Children with Disabilities 
under the Federal Individuals with Disabilities Education 

Act Amy Lane December 2013 December 2017 
County Health Department Director or Designee Mary Garcia December 2017 December 2021 

S T .  J O H N S  
Member Appointed by Bd. of County Commissioners or 

the Governing Board of a Municipality Jeb Smith  June 2017 June 2021 
Head Start Director Brian McElhone July 2017 July 2021 

Governor Appointee Private Sector CHAIR Nancy Pearson, Chair November 22, 2013 April 30, 2017 
Private Sector *Adam Deputy December 2014 December 2018 
Private Sector    

Total Private Sector 2 
M U L T I  C O U N T I E S  

DCF Regional Administrator or Designee Mala Ramoutar November 2014 November 2018 
Regional Workforce Board Executive Director or 

Designee
Renee Williams, Treasurer 
(Baker, Clay, Nassau, Putnam, St. Johns) September 2014 September 2018 

President of a Florida College System or Designee
Dr. Myrna Allen 
(Clay, Putnam, St. Johns) September 2014 September 2018 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 

Representative of Private For-Profit Child Care Providers
Angelia Hough 
(Putnam, St. Johns) June 15, 2016 June 15, 2020 

Representative of Faith Based Child Care Providers
Theresa Little 
(Putnam, St. Johns) December 7, 2016 December 7, 2020 

Central Agency Administrator
Teresa Matheny 
(All Counties) September 21, 2016 NA 

Private Sector    

Private Sector
Joy Stanton 
(St. Johns) March 16, 2016 March 16, 2020 

Total Private Sector 1 

Combined Total Private Sector (Must comprise 
MORE THAN 1/3 of total Board Membership): 6 

TOTAL MEMBERSHIP 17 
* Second 4 year term 
 

 
 Ron Coleman- Governor appointee for the private sector has filed paperwork with the Governor’s office for approval of a second term.  I 

received word that Ron is approved, just waiting on documentation. 
 

 Nancy Pearson- Governor appointee for the private sector has filed her paperwork with the Governor’s office for approval of a second term. 
Nancy’s current term is over April 2017.  I received word that Nancy is approved, just waiting on documentation.  
 

 Mary Garcia- Voted in December 2017 to December 2021 as County Health Department Director or Designee. 
 

 Kristi Simpkins- Term date is December 2017 and she has served one term, and could be asked to serve another term if she and the board are 
both interested.  (District superintendent of schools or designee) 
 

 Amy Lane- Term date is December 2017 and Marsha Hill will be coming onboard after the December board meeting beginning March of 
2018. (Representative of Programs for Children with Disabilities under the Federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Acy) 
 

 Mandatory Seats: All mandatory seats have been filled. 
 

 Combined Total Private Sector (Must be comprised of MORE THAN 1/3 of total Board Membership): 1/3 of 17 = 35%.  We currently have 
6 private sector members. 

 

 Total Membership: 15 to 30 members.  We currently have 17 board members. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Board Meeting 

December 6, 2017 
 

 

 

VII. BOARD ABSENTEEISM LOG 

 

INFORMATIONAL 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   



By-Laws

X = Attended
No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting

MEMBER NAME Oct-16 Nov-17 12/7/2016 Jan-17 Feb-17 3/22/2017 Apr-17 May-17 6/21/2017 Jul-17 Aug-17 9/20/2017

1 Allen, M. X EXCUSED EXCUSED X

2 Coleman, R. EXCUSED X X EXCUSED

3 Delcomyn, V. X X EXCUSED X

4 Deputy, A. EXCUSED EXCUSED X X

5 Graham, B. X X X X

6 Hough, A. EXCUSED x EXCUSED EXCUSED

7 Holanchock, M. X X
No longer a 

member

8 Kent, C. EXCUSED EXCUSED EXCUSED EXCUSED

9 Lane, A. EXCUSED EXCUSED X EXCUSED

10 Pearson, N. EXCUSED X EXCUSED EXCUSED

11 Ramoutar, M. X X X X

12 Simpkins, K. X X X EXCUSED

13 Sirgusa, M. EXCUSED X X
No longer a 

member

14 Matheny, T X X X X

15 Williams, R. X X X X

16 Johns, J. EXCUSED EXCUSED
No longer a 

member

17 Stanton, J. X X X X

18 Little, T. Not a Member yet X X X X

19 Smith, J. Not a Member yet X EXCUSED

20 McElhone, B. Not a Member yet X X

3.2.8.   Mandated members with three (3) consecutive 
unexcused absences from meetings or six (6) 
unexcused absences from meetings within a twelve 
month period without due cause may be notified by the 

MEMBER ABSENTEEISM LOG

BOARD

3.2.7.    Unexcused absences from two (2) consecutive 
meetings within a twelve month period by a 
representative or appointed member is equivalent to 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.



 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting 

December 6, 2017 
 

 

VIII. Board Comment 

       

 

IX. Next Meetings 
 

 Wednesday, February 7, 2018, 10:30 a.m. – 
Exec/Admin Committee Conference Call  

Meeting 
 

 Wednesday, March 21, 2018, 10:30 a.m.  
Board Meeting at   

World Golf Village 
 

      

 

X. Adjournment* 

 

*ACTION ITEM 


	1-Tentative Agenda 12 06 2017
	2-CS I II III
	3-CS  IV
	4-MINUTES  Board - 09 20 17- DB approved
	5-CS V B
	6-Program Update 1 Qtr 17-18
	7-CS V C
	8-Early Literacy Outreach Report first quarter report 2017
	9-CS V D
	10-MINUTES - Exec Admin 11 01 17 Draft
	11-CS V C 1-9
	12-MINUTES- EXEC ADMIN 08 09 17 W EDITS
	13-ECS-contract amendment 0003-17
	14-OEL-ELC UFLC PFP Contract 1718 SR400
	15-ELC-ECS UFLC PFP Contract 1718 SR400
	16-ELC SR Plan 2017-19 Certification
	17-AIS-KSimpkins 2nd Term Dec 2017_2021
	18-K Brumfield CONTRACT Dec 2017 to Dec 2018
	19-Mancino Lease _ Final draft for approval
	20-Contemporary Staff Agreement
	21-CS VI A
	22-AIS for MDR-ECS Audit
	23-MDR - ECS Audit Report 16-17
	24-CS VI B
	25-AIS NEFEC Lease Renewal
	26-NEFEC Lease agreement with assurances 10 23 17
	27-CS VI C
	28-AIS agenda item ECS 1718 contract amend 4
	29-ECS-contract amendment 0004-17
	30-CS VI D
	31-AIS-Personnel Pol rev for BA 120617
	32-Personnel Pol-Proc rev BA 120617 - ind policy
	33-CS VI E
	34-AIS - M Hill Term March 2018-2022
	35-Application Marsha Hill 11.7.17
	36-Marsha Hill Recommendation Letter
	37-CS VI F
	38-AIS-M Garcia Term December 2017-2021
	39-Application Mary Garcia 11 13 17
	40-CS VI G
	41-Board  Membership Smry edited 11 13 17
	42-CS VII
	43-Board Absenteeism Log for 12 06 17
	44-CS VIII & IX & X

	State: 
	State_2: 
	Employer Address JR Personal Address U: 
	COMMENTS: 


